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PROCEEDINGS
(Transcript follows in sequence from

Volume 14.)

D. DAONNE CALDWELL
was called as a witness on behalf of BellSouth
Telecommunications, Inc. and, having been duly sworn,
testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. LACKEY:

Q Have you been sworn, Ms. Caldwell?
A Yes, I have.
Q Would you state your name and address for

the record?

A My name is Doris Daonne Caldwell. My
business address is 675 West Peachtree Street N.E.,
Atlanta, Georgia.‘

Q And by whom are you employed?

A BellSouth Telecommunications Inc.

Q Ms. Caldwell, we have a number of sets of
testimony to go through here, so I'm going to try to
do it company by company.

Did you cause to be prefiled in the AT&T
portion of this proceeding direct testimony on August

12th consisting of 25 pages of questions and answers
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accompanied by 22 exhibits?

A Yes, I did.

MR. LACKEY: Madam Chairman, the prehearing
order only reflects 21 exhibits, but there actually is
a 22nd exhibit attached. I overlooked that when I was
looking at the prehearing order. The 22nd exhibit is
the LIDB database study, or analysis.

Q (By Mr. Lackey) Ms. Caldwell, did you also
cause to be filed in this docket supplemental
testimony on August 23rd consisting of six pages of
questions and answers?

A Yes, I did.

Q And in this same AT&T proceeding, did you
cause to be filed on August 30th rebuttal testimony
consisting of 10 pages?

A Yes, I did.

Q And the only exhibits that accompany the

AT&T testimony were the 22 attached to your direct

testimony?
A That is correct.
Q Do you have any changes or corrections to

the direct, supplemental or rebuttal testimony that we
just identified?
A No, I do not.

Q And if I were to ask you the questions that

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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appear there, would your answers be the same?

A Yes, they would.

Q Do you have any changes or corrections to
the exhibits?

A No, I do not.

Q We'll move to the next set, and then I'll
move them all at once. In the MCI portion of this
proceeding, on September 9th did you file 10 pages of
direct testimony in question and answer form?

A Excuse me. Is that the 960846 docket?

Q Just a moment let me look. 1It's the 960 --
I'm sorry. dJust a minute. It is the 96086 (sic)
docket, and I asked you about your direct testimony in
that docket filed on September 9th, 1996. Did it
consist of 10 pages?

COMMISSIONER KIESLING: I'm sorry. You
confused me even more. Which docket is the MCI?

MR. LACKEY: I'm showing it -- pardon?

MS. WHITE: 960846.

MR. LACKEY: That's what I show it is.

COMMISSIONER KIESLING: Thank you.

Q (By Mr. Lackey) I'm sorry. The AT&T
testimony I was just referring to was in the 860833
(sic) docket; is that correct?

A That's correct.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Q Now I've moved -- wait a minute.
CHAIRMAN CLARK: Just go slow, Mr. Lackey.
We'll wait for you.
MR. LACKEY: Can I move all Ms. Caldwell's
testimony into the record without objection?
CHAIRMAN CLARK: I'm just not sure what all
it consists of.
Q (By Mr. Lackey) All right. Ms. Caldwell
did you file direct, supplemental and rebuttal
testimony in the AT&T docket?
A Yes, sir, I did.
Q Did you file direct and rebuttal testimony
in the MCI docket?
A Yes, I did.
Q Did you file direct and rebuttal testimony
in the ACSI docket?
A Yes, I did.
Q And with regard to the ACSI direct --
COMMISSIONER KIESLING: Hold on. I don't
have it all, then. That concerns me.
MR. LACKEY: You mean there may be a
possibility it's not my fault?
COMMISSIONER KIESLING: Yes. I have only
direct in my folder --

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I'm missing a piece, too.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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I only have -~-

COMMISSIONER KIESLING: -- for MCI.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Right. It doesn't look
like I have rebuttal for MCI.

COMMISSIONER KIESLING: And I have only
direct and rebuttal for ACSI.

WITNESS CALDWELL: Excuse me. I'm sorry. I
made a mistake. I only filed the direct in MCI.

MR. LACKEY: Well, then, I made the mistake,
Ms. Caldwell.

COMMISSIONER KIESLING: If you're going to
ask leading questions, at least make sure that they're
right. (Laughter.)

MR. LACKEY: You're exactly right. I do
much better when I make them up instead of trying to
write them down like I've done here.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: So the record reflects the
correct testimony, there is in the AT&T docket, which
is 960833, direct, supplemental direct and rebuttal
testimony. In docket 960846, which is the MCI, there
is only direct testimony, and in the docket for ACSI,
there is direct and rebuttal testimony, and that is
Docket 960916.

MR. LACKEY: Exactly.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: That testimony will be

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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inserted in the record as though read. Exhibits,

Mr. Lackey.

Q (By Mr. Lackey) In addition to the 22
exhibits accompanying your AT&T direct testimony, did
you have four exhibits attached to your ACSI direct
testimony?

A Yes, I did.

Q Thank goodness.

MR. LACKEY: Madam Chairman, could I have
the exhibits ~- I think probably we have a problem.
Some of the AT&T exhibits are proprietary, so perhaps
we need to number them sequentially.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Lackey, let's deal with
what is, I think, DDC-1 through 22, which is attached
to her direct testimony filed in the AT&T docket.
What about those? And we'll mark is that as Composite
Exhibit 65.

MR. LACKEY: The only problem I have with
that is that Exhibits 1 through 7 are -- I'm sorry --
1 through 6 are not proprietary, DDC-6, 1 through
DDC-6 are not proprietary. 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 --

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Up to 20, I believe.

MR. LACKEY: Up to 20 are proprietary, and
then 21 and 22 are not proprietary. So I think it

ought to be in three groups, at least, if you're going

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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to bundle them together.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: What I have done is the
exhibits attached to Ms. Caldwell's direct testimony
in 960833 labeled DDC-1 through 6, and 21 and 22 will
be marked as be Exhibit 65.

(Exhibit 65 marked for identification.)

CHAIRMAN CLARK: DDC-7 through 20, which are
proprietary, which contain proprietary information,
will be marked as Exhibit 66.

(Exhibit 66 marked for identification.)

MR. LACKEY: And then she has four exhibits
that are attached to the ACSI direct, which are not
proprietary.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: All right. DDC-1 through 4
which are attached to the direct testimony in Docket
960916 will be marked as Exhibit 67. Okay.

(Exhibit 67 marked for identification.)

Q (By Mr. Lackey) Ms. Caldwell, in addition
to the testimony and exhibits including -- that we've
just discussed, on October 4th of this year did you
cause an additional exhibit to be filed which consists
of the Florida unbundled loops cost study, the TELRIC
study that's been referred to here?

a Yes, sir.

MR. LACKEY: Madam Chairman, I think that is

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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also -- needs to be marked as an exhibit. The study
is proprietary, the output numbers are not.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Is there one exhibit?

MR. LACKEY: Yes, ma'am.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I'm just going to mark the
TELRIC study, note that it's confidential, and mark it
as Exhibit e68.

(Exhibit 68 marked for identification.)

MR. LACKEY: Thank you.

Q (By Mr. Lackey) I should have asked you,
you don't have any changes or corrections to any of
those exhibits, do you, the TELRIC that we just talked
about?

A No, sir.

MR. LACKEY: And, Madam Chairman, you
included it all in spite of my ineptness in the
record, I take it?

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I marked all those
exhibits, and the testimony has been moved in.

MR. LACKEY: Thank you.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
DIRECT TESTIMONY OF D. DAONNE CALDWELL
BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. 960833-TP
AUGUST 12, 1996

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, ADDRESS AND OCCUPATION.

My name is D. Daonne Caldwell. My business address is 675 W. Peachtree
St., N.E., Atlanta, Georgia. I am a manager in the Finance Department of
BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “BellSouth” or

“the Company”). My area of responsibility relates to economic service costs.

PLEASE GIVE A BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR EDUCATIONAL
BACKGROUND AND WORK EXPERIENCE.

I attended the University of Mississippi, graduating with a Master of Science
Degree in mathematics. I have attended numerous Bell Communications
Research, Inc. (Bellcore) courses and outside seminars relating to service cost

studies and economic principles.

My initial employment was with South Central Bell in 1976 in the Tupelo,
Mississippi, Engineering Department where 1 was responsible for Outside
Plant Planning. In 1983, I transferred to BellSouth Services, Inc. in

Birmingham, Alabama, and was responsible for the Centralized Results

-1-
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System Database. I moved to the Pricing and Economics Department in 1984
where I developed methodology for service cost studies until 1986 when I
accepted a rotational assignment with Bell Communications Research, Inc.
While at Bellcore, I was responsible for development and instruction of the
Service Cost Studies Curriculum including courses such as “Concepts of
Service Cost Studies”, “Network Service Costs”, “Nonrecurring Costs”, and
“Cost Studies for New Technologies”. In 1990, I returned to BellSouth and
was appointed to a position in the cost organization, which is now a part of the
Finance Department, with the responsibility of managing the development of

cost studies for transport facilities, both loop and interoffice.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?

The purpose of my testimony is to describe the cost methodology used in the
Long Run Incremental Cost (LRIC) and Total Service Long Run Incremental
Cost (TSLRIC) studies for the unbundled elements that BellSouth will provide
to the Alternative Local Exchange Companies (ALECSs) in Florida.

Specifically, I will address the cost studies for the following network elements:

. Unbundled Loops

. Unbundled Ports and Associated Local Usage

. Unbundled Loop Channelization Systems and Central Office Channel
Interfaces (located in the BellSouth central office buildings)

. Special Access Voice Grade Service Interoffice Channel Voice -

. Unbundled Exchange Access

2.
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° Operator Services

o Directory Assistance

o Common Channel Signaling
. Database Services

The cost studies include all the volume sensitive and volume insensitive long
run incremental costs associated with the provision of these unbundled

elements.

DOES YOUR TESTIMONY ADDRESS THE DIRECT TESTIMONY OF
AT&T WITNESSES IN THIS PROCEEDING?

No. My testimony does not address the testimony which AT&T has filed
subsequent to the filing of its petition. Responses to AT&T’s testimony will

be included in the Company’s rebuttal testimony in this docket.

DOES YOUR TESTIMONY ADDRESS THE RECENTLY ISSUED
FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION (FCC) RULES?

No. The FCC’s rules were not received in time to be incorporated in this
testimony. Comments related to the impact of the FCC’s rules will be included

in subsequent testimony in this docket.

PLEASE LIST THE UNBUNDLED ELEMENTS FOR WHICH
BELLSOUTH PROVIDED COST STUDIES IN DOCKET NO. 950984-TP?

-3-
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On May 28, 1996, in Docket No. 950984-TP, BellSouth filed cost studies for

the following unbundled elements:

. 2-wire analog voice grade unbundled loops

. 4-wire analog voice grade unbundled loops

. 2-wire ISDN digital grade unbundled loops

o 4-wire DS1 digital grade unbundled loops

. Unbundled 2-wire analog line ports

o Unbundled 2-wire ISDN digital line ports

. Unbundled 2-wire analog DID trunk ports

. Unbundled 4-wire DS1 digital DID trunk ports
. Unbundled 4-wire ISDN DS1 digital trunk ports

o Local measured usage associated with the unbundled 2-wire analog line
port

o Local measured usage associated with the unbundled 2-wire ISDN
digital line port

o Local measured usage associated with the unbundled 4-wire ISDN DS1
digital trunk port

. Unbundled loop channelization systems and central office channel
interfaces

Revised cost studies for these elements are being filed with my testimony in

this proceeding.
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WHAT REVISIONS ARE REFLECTED IN THE REVISED COST
STUDIES?

The substantive revisions are as follows:

. Nonrecurring costs for the unbundled 2-wire analog loop are revised
based on updated work times.

. Nonrecurring costs are revised to reflect a change in the disconnect
factor and location lives.

. Software right-to-use (RTU) costs for the unbundled ports are
expressed as an equivalent recurring cost as well as a nonrecurring cost.
Additionally, volume insensitive RTU costs are identified separately
and RTU costs are revised to reflect updated data.

. Local Usage associated with the various ports is calculated to include
the expanded local calling area and the cost results are expressed to
match the existing tariff rate structure.

. The unbundled voice grade loops reflect updates to the Digital Loop
Carrier File and the Main Distributing Frame calculations.

. The 2-wire analog line port is disaggregated into residence, business,

and PBX ports.

PLEASE LIST THE ADDITIONAL UNBUNDLED ELEMENTS FOR
WHICH BELLSOUTH IS FILING COST STUDIES WITH YOUR
TESTIMONY IN THIS PROCEEDING?
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Cost studies for the following unbundled elements requested by AT&T are also

being filed in addition to the previously filed studies:

. Special Access Voice Grade Service Interoffice Channel Voice -

Unbundled Exchange Access

. Operator Services

. Directory Assistance

. Common Channel Signaling
o Database Services

Cost studies for Coin Port and Operator Services Call Trace are currently in

progress and will be filed when they are completed.

ARE COST STUDIES BEING PROVIDED FOR ALL THE UNBUNDLED
NETWORK ELEMENTS THAT AT&T HAS REQUESTED?

No. Cost studies are being filed only for the unbundled elements that
BellSouth plans to offer to the ALECs. Mr. Milner’s testimony identifies the
elements which are not technically feasible and explains the Company’s

position.

WHY WERE COST STUDIES PERFORMED FOR THE UNBUNDLED

ELEMENTS?
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The cost studies for the unbundled elements were developed to support
monthly and nonrecurring rates that will be charged for the unbundled
elements. The monthly rates are supported by the recurring costs included in
the studies. Recurring costs include both capital and non-capital costs. Capital
costs consist of depreciation, cost of money, and income tax. Non-capital
recurring costs are operating expenses and consist of maintenance, ad valorem

taxes and gross receipts taxes.

Nonrecurring costs include the one time expenses for the labor intensive
provisioning effort required to provide a particular service. These
nonrecurring costs support nonrecurring rates. Additionally, RTU fees
associated with the switch ports are one time expenses and are nonrecurring
costs. The RTU fees are expressed as nonrecurring costs and as unit recurring
equivalent costs in the cost studies for the unbundled elements. The Pricing
Organization decides whether to recover the cost in either the recurring rates or

the nonrecurring rates.

WHAT COST METHODOLOGY IS USED IN THE COST STUDIES FOR
UNBUNDLED ELEMENTS?

Incremental costing techniques are used to identify the incremental costs
associated with providing these elements. Incremental costs are based on cost
causation and include all of the costs directly caused by expanding production,
or alternatively, costs that would be saved if the production levels were

reduced. The production unit could be an entire service or a unit of a service.

-7-
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Costs may be volume sensitive and/or volume insensitive. Long run
incremental cost studies ensure that the time period studied is sufficient to
capture all forward looking costs affected by the business decision being

studied.

IS THE COST METHODOLOGY USED FOR THE UNBUNDLED
ELEMENTS DIFFERENT FROM THE COST METHODOLOGY USED TO
DEVELOP LONG RUN INCREMENTAL COSTS FOR SERVICES
BELLSOUTH PROVIDES TO END USER CUSTOMERS?

No. BellSouth uses the same cost methodology to develop long run
incremental costs for unbundled elements provided to ALECs and for service

provided to end user customers.

DO THE LRIC AND TSLRIC STUDIES FOR THE UNBUNDLED
ELEMENTS INCLUDE SHARED OR COMMON COSTS?

No. The long run incremental and total service long run incremental cost
studies do not include shared or common costs. The LRIC studies for the
unbundled elements include only the volume sensitive direct long run
incremental costs associated with providing these elements. The TSLRIC
studies include volume insensitive long run incremental costs in addition to the
LRIC. Other BellSouth witnesses, such as Dr. Emmerson and Mr. Scheye will

more fully address the pricing and cost recovery issues.
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WHAT NETWORK COMPONENTS ARE INCLUDED IN EACH OF THE
FOUR TYPES OF UNBUNDLED LOOPS (2-WIRE ANALOG VOICE
GRADE, 4-WIRE ANALOG VOICE GRADE, 2-WIRE ISDN DIGITAL
GRADE, AND 4-WIRE DS1 DIGITAL GRADE)?

The unbundled loop is the facility used to connect an ALEC’s customer
premises with the BellSouth central office. The voice grade and ISDN
unbundled loops begin at a connection on the Main Distributing Frame in the
BellSouth central office and the DS1 unbundled loop begins at a connection on
a DSX-1 cross connect panel in the BellSouth central office. At the ALEC’s
customer premises, the loop includes the cabling up to and including the
network interface. All outside plant components of the network utilized
between the central office and the ALEC’s customer premises are included.
The network components include copper cables, poles, conduit, fiber optic
cables, and multiplexing equipment. Attachment DDC-1 to my testimony

depicts the basic architecture for each of the four unbundled loops.

WHAT TECHNOLOGIES ARE INCLUDED IN THE UNBUNDLED LOOP
COST STUDIES?

The technologies differ depending on the type of loop being provisioned. The
voice grade and ISDN unbundled loop studies analyze two technologies:
copper and digital loop carrier on fiber. Copper and digital loop carrier on

fiber represent forward looking technologies and the most efficient method of
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deploying voice grade (2-wire and 4-wire) and 2-wire ISDN unbundled loops

now and in the future.

The unbundled DS1 digital grade loop study analyzes five network designs
(architectures) that will be used on a forward looking basis to deploy DS1
loops. The five designs can be categorized into two basic technologies:

copper and Synchronous Optical Network (SONET) fiber rings.

WHAT IS THE RECURRING COST STUDY PROCESS FOR
UNBUNDLED LOOPS?

The generic steps involved in developing recurring costs for unbundled loops
are listed below. Each of the four unbundled loops is studied separately and
the unique characteristics of each, such as transmission level and loop length,
are taken into consideration. Attachment DDC-2 provides a flowchart
depicting the specific steps for developing the recurring costs for the

unbundled 2-wire analog voice grade loop.

Step 1: Determine the network designs (architectures) which will be used to
deploy the loop. (Loop sample data is gathered for the voice grade and ISDN
loops. Design probabilities are determined for the DS1 loop from network

subject matter experts.)

-10-
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Step 2: Determine material prices and/or investments for the items of plant
used in each design and/or each loop sample. Material prices are obtained

from BellSouth contracts with various vendors.

Step 3: Apply in-plant factors and telephone plant indices as appropriate to
determine base year investments. In-plant factors are applied to material prices
in order to convert the material price to an installed investment which includes
the cost of material, engineering labor and installation labor. Telephone plant
indices estimate the changes in material price and/or installed investment over

time.

Step 4: Adjust the investments for utilization to account for spare capacity.

Spare capacity is required for maintenance and growth.

Step 5: Apply investment inflation factors to the investments to convert the
utilized base year investments to investments representative of a three year

planning period.

Step 6: Apply loading factors to the investments to determine investments for
miscellaneous common equipment and power, land, buildings, poles and

conduit as appropriate.

Step 7: Weight the investments to determine an average investment for a
typical loop and add the results to determine an investment by plant account

for the service. The investment for each loop in the loop sample is calculated

-11-




HhOWON

(&)

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

and then an average loop investment is determined for the voice grade and
ISDN unbundled loops. The DS1 study uses the probability of occurrence of

the designs for weighting.

Step 8: Convert the investments by plant account to annual costs by applying
account specific annual cost factors to the various investments. Add the annual
costs for the various accounts and then divide by 12 to determine a total

monthly cost for the service.

WHAT IS INCLUDED IN THE NONRECURRING COSTS FOR EACH
TYPE OF UNBUNDLED LOOP?

Nonrecurring costs for the unbundled loops are the one time costs associated
with provisioning, installing, and disconnecting the unbundled loops. These
costs include four major categories of activity: service order processing,
engineering, connect and test, and technician travel time. Examples of the

work activities in each of these categories are as follows:

. Service order processing - Prepare and issue service order

. Engineering - Assign cable and pair; Design circuit; Order plug-in
. Connect and Test - Install circuit; Test circuit

. Technician Travel Time - Travel to the ALEC’s customer premises

WHAT IS THE NONRECURRING COST STUDY PROCESS FOR ALL
FOUR TYPES OF UNBUNDLED LOOPS?

-12-
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The generic process for developing the nonrecurring costs for unbundled loops

is as follows:

Step 1: Determine the cost elements to be developed.

Step 2: Define the work functions.

Step 3:  Establish work flows.

Step 4: Determine work times for each work function.

Step 5:  Develop directly assigned labor costs for each work function (labor
rate X work time).

Step 6: Accumulate work function costs to determine the total nonrecurring

costs for each cost element.

Attachment DDC-3 provides a flowchart depicting the nonrecurring cost

development.

WHY IS THE 2-WIRE UNBUNDLED LOOP COST STUDY RESULT,
FILED IN THIS PROCEEDING DIFFERENT FROM THE UNBUNDLED
LOOP COST STUDY RESULT FILED ON JANUARY 2, 1996, BY
BELLSOUTH UNDER DISCOVERY ASSOCIATED WITH DOCKET NO.

950984-TP?

The results are different because the study parameters have changed. The 2-
wire unbundled loop cost study provided under discovery in Docket No.

950984-TP was based on the 1994 Loop-Is-A-Loop (LIAL) cost study. The

-13-
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1994 LIAL cost study used older inputs, was not class of service specific, and
developed a monthly cost based on modeling a typical loop. The cost study
filed with this proceeding uses current inputs, such as material prices and
annual cost factors. More importantly, the new study is based on the 1995
Loop Survey data. The 1995 Loop Survey is a state wide sample of loops that
is statistically valid by class of service. The new unbundled 2-wire analog
voice grade loop is based on residence and business loops rather than all
classes of service. In addition, costs are developed for each sample loop rather

than modeling a typical loop.

WHAT NETWORK COMPONENTS ARE INCLUDED IN EACH OF THE
FIVE TYPES OF UNBUNDLED PORTS (2-WIRE ANALOG LINE
(RESIDENCE, BUSINESS, AND PBX), 2-WIRE ISDN DIGITAL LINE, 2-
WIRE ANALOG DID TRUNK, 4-WIRE DSI DIGITAL DID TRUNK, AND

4-WIRE ISDN DS1 DIGITAL TRUNK)?

The unbundled port is the facility used to connect an ALEC’s loop to a
BellSouth end office switch. The facility includes the connection on the Main
Distributing Frame, the jumper to the switch, and the non-traffic sensitive
termination in the switch. BellSouth uses the Switching Cost Information
System (SCIS), a Bellcore cost model, to develop the vendor engineered,
furnished, and installed (EF&I) investment associated with these items of
plant. The SCIS model outputs reflect vendor design criteria, BellSouth
engineering rules, and customer usage characteristics. Attachment DDC-4

illustrates the basic architecture of the unbundled ports.

-14-
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Local measured usage is associated with the 2-wire analog line (residence,
business, and PBX), 2-wire ISDN digital line and 4-wire ISDN DS1 digital
trunk unbundled ports. This usage includes the traffic sensitive switching cost
of the end office for both intraoffice and interoffice calls within the local
calling area of that end office. Additionally, local tandem switching and
interoffice transport are included. Attachment DDC-5 shows an illustrative

example of a local exchange network.

WHAT IS THE RECURRING COST STUDY PROCESS FOR
UNBUNDLED PORTS AND LOCAL MEASURED USAGE?

The recurring cost study process is basically the same for any service or
network element. Therefore, the process (steps) outlined for the unbundled
loops is generally the same as for the unbundled ports. However, the unique
characteristics of each element must be considered. For the unbundled ports,
SCIS models the switch characteristics and identifies the direct incremental
investments associated with providing the unbundled ports. SCIS adjusts the
investments for equipment used for administrative purposes. The SCIS output
investment is basically processed as outlined in steps 3 and 5 through 8 for the

unbundled loops to determine the monthly cost per port.

The Network Cost Analysis Tool (NCAT), a Bellcore cost model, is used to
calculate the cost associated with the first and additional minute per local call.

The NCAT model is very complex, as is the public switched network.

-15-
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Thousands of data inputs from numerous company sources are used to
populate the database files of NCAT. For example, the inputs include end
office switching investments, interoffice investments, and local service point-
to-point usage data. A demand change or stimulation factor is used to
determine incremental messages and minutes for local usage associated with
the unbundled port. NCAT calculates the incremental costs associated with the
various network components impacted by the incremental (or change in)
demand. The processing of an ISDN call consumes switch resources
incremental to a Plain Old Telephone Service (POTS) call. Therefore,
additional switch costs are identified using SCIS and are added to the NCAT

results for the ISDN unbundled ports.

WHAT IS INCLUDED IN THE NONRECURRING COSTS FOR EACH
TYPE OF UNBUNDLED PORT?

The nonrecurring costs for the unbundled port include the costs associated with
provisioning, installing, and disconnecting the unbundled ports and RTU costs
where applicable. The RTU costs are also expressed as unit recurring
equivalent costs. Specifically, the nonrecurring costs for the 2-wire analog
line, 2-wire ISDN digital line and the 4-wire ISDN digital trunk port include
costs for processing the service order, assigning the line and number,
processing the switch translations, and RTU costs. Additionally, the ISDN
ports include labor related costs associated with facility design. The costs for

the DID trunk ports include costs for processing the service order, processing

-16-
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the switch translations, and designing the facilities. DID terminations do not

include RTU costs.

WHAT IS THE NONRECURRING COST STUDY PROCESS FOR THE
UNBUNDLED PORTS?

The nonrecurring cost study process for the unbundled ports is the same as the
nonrecurring cost study process for the unbundled loops except the unbundled
ports may include RTU costs. The RTU cost is calculated by first determining
the RTU expense from vendor contracts. The RTU fees are vendor and switch
type specific. Therefore, the individual fees are melded based on the percent

deployment of network access lines per switch type. Then gross receipts tax is

added to the melded number to determine a RTU cost per port installed.

WHAT NETWORK COMPONENTS ARE INCLUDED IN THE
UNBUNDLED LOOP CHANNELIZATION SYSTEM AND THE CENTRAL
OFFICE CHANNEL INTERFACE?

The unbundled loop channelization system and central office channel interface
is an arrangement offered to the ALEC for the purpose of channelizing
multiple digital loop carrier 1.544 mbps channels on a non-concentrated or
concentrated basis up to a maximum of 96 channels per system. These
channels are available for connection to unbundled voice grade loops. The
system includes the DSX-1 cross connect panel terminations for the DS1s and

the digital loop carrier system hardwired equipment and common plug-ins.
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The central office channel interface includes the working voice grade plug-in.

Attachment DDC-6 depicts the items of plant included in these elements.

WHAT IS THE RECURRING COST STUDY PROCESS FOR THE
UNBUNDLED LOOP CHANNELIZATION SYSTEM AND CENTRAL
OFFICE CHANNEL INTERFACE?

The recurring cost study process for the unbundled loop channelization system
and central office channel interface includes the same generic cost study steps
as those listed for the unbundled loops. Of course the network design
determined in step 1 is for the unbundled loop channelization system and

central office channel interface.

WHAT IS INCLUDED IN THE NONRECURRING COSTS FOR THE
UNBUNDLED LOOP CHANNELIZATION SYSTEM AND CENTRAL
OFFICE CHANNEL INTERFACE?

The nonrecurring costs for the unbundled loop channelization system and
central office channel interface include three major categories of cost: (1)
service order processing, (2) engineering, and (3) connect and test. The
activities associated with these costs are similar to the activities listed for the
unbundled loops. These unbundled elements are located in the BellSouth

central office buildings. Therefore, technician travel time is not required.
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WHAT IS THE NONRECURRING COST STUDY PROCESS FOR THE
UNBUNDLED LOOP CHANNELIZATION SYSTEM AND THE CENTRAL
OFFICE CHANNEL INTERFACE?

The nonrecurring cost study process for the unbundled loop channelization
system and central office channel interface is identical to the nonrecurring cost

study process for the unbundled loops.

WHAT NETWORK COMPONENTS ARE INCLUDED IN THE
UNBUNDLED SPECIAL ACCESS VOICE GRADE SERVICE
INTEROFFICE CHANNEL VOICE - UNBUNDLED EXCHANGE
ACCESS?

The unbundled voice grade interoffice channel is an arrangement offered to
ALEC:s for the purpose of providing a dedicated voice grade transmission path
between two or more switching offices and a serving wire center of BellSouth.
This is for connecting an unbundled exchange access loop to another central
office that is not the central office of the end user. The arrangement includes a
facility termination and a per mile element. The facility termination includes
transmission equipment at both end offices of the circuit as well as the circuit
equipment in the intermediate central offices through which the circuit passes.
The per mile element includes aerial, buried, and underground fiber cable as

well as the associated pole and conduit support investment.

-19-
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WHAT IS THE RECURRING COST STUDY PROCESS FOR THE
UNBUNDLED SPECIAL ACCESS VOICE GRADE SERVICE
INTEROFFICE CHANNEL VOICE - UNBUNDLED EXCHANGE
ACCESS?

The recurring cost study process for the unbundled voice grade interoffice
channel includes the same generic cost study steps as those listed for the
unbundled loops. Of course the network designs determined in step 1 are for

the voice grade interoffice channel.

WHAT IS INCLUDED IN THE NONRECURRING COSTS FOR THE
UNBUNDLED SPECIAL ACCESS VOICE GRADE SERVICE
INTEROFFICE CHANNEL VOICE - UNBUNDLED EXCHANGE
ACCESS?

The nonrecurring costs for the unbundled voice grade interoffice channel
include three major categories of cost: (1) service order processing, (2)
engineering, and (3) connect and test. The activities associated with these

costs are similar to the activities listed for the unbundled loops.

WHAT IS THE NONRECURRING COST STUDY PROCESS FOR THE
UNBUNDLED SPECIAL ACCESS VOICE GRADE SERVICE
INTEROFFICE CHANNEL VOICE - UNBUNDLED EXCHANGE
ACCESS?

-20-
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The nonrecurring cost study process for the unbundled voice grade interoffice
channel is identical to the nonrecurring cost study process for the unbundled

loops.

HOW WILL BELLSOUTH PROVIDE UNBUNDLED OPERATOR
SERVICES AND DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE (DA)?

BellSouth will provide unbundled operator functions using the Company’s
existing Operator Services. Operator Services includes operator provided and
fully automated call handling. Operator provided call handling includes 0+
and 0- calls. Fully automated call handling includes automated calling card,
automated bill-to-third, and automated collect calls. Additionally, Operator

Services includes busy line verification and emergency interrupt.

BellSouth will provide unbundled DA using the Company’s existing Number
Services. Number Services includes DA Access Service, DA Database Service
and Direct Access to DA Service, DA Call Completion, and Directory

Transport. Additionally, Number Services includes Number Intercept.

HOW WILL BELLSOUTH PROVIDE UNBUNDLED COMMON

CHANNEL SIGNALING?

BellSouth will provide unbundled Common Channel Signaling using its
Common Channel Signaling/System Signaling 7 (CCS7) Signaling Transport

Service. This service provides access to the Common Channel Signaling

-21-
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network and transport of signaling messages used for call set-up and database
query/response. The primary components of the network are Signal Transfer
Points (STPs) and Signaling Links. The STPs are packet switches which route
signaling messages through the network. The Signaling Links connect end and
tandem office switches to the STPs, and the STPs to Service Control Points
(SCPs). The SCPs are databases used for specific services such as Line

Identification Database (LIDB) service.

CCS7 Signaling Transport Service includes the following cost elements:

. CCS7 Signaling Connection per 56 kbps Facility, per Month and
Nonrecurring

. CCS7 Signaling Termination per STP Port, per Month

. CCS7 Signaling Usage, per Call Set-up Message and Per Transactions
Capabilities Application Part (TCAP) Message

. CCS7 Signaling Usage Surrogate, per 56 kbps, per Month

HOW WILL BELLSOUTH PROVIDE UNBUNDLED DATABASE

SERVICES?

BellSouth will provide unbundled database services using the Company’s
existing Database Services utilizing the CCS7 platform. Unbundled Database
Services includes the following:

. 800/POTS Number Delivery per Call

. 800/POTS Number Delivery with Optional Complex Features

. per Call

-22-
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LIDB Common Transport per Query

LIDB Validation per Query

o Originating Point Code Establishment or Change

WHAT IS THE RECURRING COST STUDY PROCESS FOR OPERATOR
SERVICES AND DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE?

The cost study process follows the same generic steps for investment related
recurring costs as previously discussed for unbundled loops. In addition to
these investment related costs, software expenses have been quantified as well
as operator labor costs. These costs are levelized over the period of 1996
through 1998. The levelized software expenses are amortized over five years
to develop an equivalent annual cost. The labor cost is calculated on a cost per
unit basis by using the average work time for a specific call type and
multiplying by the appropriate labor rate. These costs are then segregated by
volume sensitive and volume insensitive groupings. Unit LRIC are calculated
for the volume sensitive costs. Unit TSLRIC are calculated including both the

volume sensitive and volume insensitive costs.

WHAT IS THE RECURRING COST STUDY PROCESS FOR COMMON
CHANNEL SIGNALING AND DATABASE SERVICES?

The cost study process follows the same generic steps for investment related
recurring costs as previously discussed for unbundled loops. In addition to

these investment related costs, non-investment related costs have been
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quantified such as software expenses and lease payments for maintenance and
administrative vendor services. These non-investment related costs are
levelized over the period of 1996 to 1998. The levelized software expenses are
amortized over five years to develop an equivalent annual cost. These costs
are then segregated by volume sensitive and volume insensitive groupings.
Unit LRIC are calculated for the volume sensitive costs. Unit TSLRIC are

calculated including both the volume sensitive and volume insensitive costs.

WHAT IS THE NONRECURRING COST STUDY PROCESS FOR
OPERATOR SERVICES, DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE, COMMON
CHANNEL SIGNALING, AND DATABASE SERVICES?

The cost study process follows the generic steps identified in Attachment

DDC-3.

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR TESTIMONY.

The long run incremental and total service long run incremental cost studies
filed with my testimony in this proceeding determine the long run incremental
costs specific to Florida for providing the following elements: unbundled
loops, unbundled ports and associated local measured usage, unbundled loop
channelization systems and central office channel interfaces, unbundled
interoffice voice grade transport, operator services, directory assistance,
common channel signaling, and database services. The cost studies include the

costs directly incurred in provisioning these elements. BellSouth uses the
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same cost study methodology for unbundled elements provided to ALECs and

for services provided to end user customers.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yes.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
SUPPLEMENTAL TESTIMONY OF D. DAONNE CALDWELL
BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. 960833-TP
AUGUST 23, 1996

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, ADDRESS AND OCCUPATION.

My name is D. Daonne Caldwell. My business address is 675 W. Peachtree
St., N.E., Atlanta, Georgia. I am a manager in the Finance Department of

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (“BellSouth™).

ARE YOU THE SAME D. DAONNE CALDWELL WHO PREVIOUSLY
FILED TESTIMONY IN THIS PROCEEDING?

Yes.
WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR SUPPLEMENTAL TESTIMONY?

My testirnony provides information relative to the cost methodology specified
in the FCC’s First Report and Order in CC Docket No. 96-98 (“Order”)
released on August 8, 1996 and how that methodology compares to that used in
the cost studies filed by BellSouth in this docket. I identify the differences in

methodology that must be resolved in order to produce cost studies that
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comply with the FCC’s methodology, based on the presumption that the FCC’s

Order remains in effect as issued.

THE FCC’S ORDER SPECIFIES A FORWARD LOOKING LONG RUN
COST METHODOLOGY FOR ESTABLISHING INTERCONNECTION
AND UNBUNDLED NETWORK ELEMENT RATES. IS THE FCC’S
METHODOLOGY CONSISTENT WITH THE METHODOLOGY USED IN
THE COST STUDIES THAT BELLSOUTH FILED IN THIS DOCKET?

BellSouth used a forward looking long run economic cost methodology.
BellSouth’s studies identified both the Long Run Incremental Cost (LRIC) and
the Total Service Long Run Incremental Cost (TSLRIC), as appropriate, as
ordered by the Commission. These studies included only the direct costs
caused by providing the particular service or network element being studied.

The LRIC appropriately establishes the price floor for the cost element studied.

The purpose of the cost methodology established by the FCC, Total Element
Long Run Incremental Cost (TELRIC), is to set the rates for interconnection
and unbundled network elements. All three methodologies are forward
looking, long run and are based on the most efficient technology available.
There are no common, shared or joint costs in BellSouth’s LRIC or TSLRIC
studies. TELRIC methodology, however, anticipates that many costs regarded
as common or shared in BellSouth’s LRIC and TSLRIC methodology would

be included as directly attributable costs and the resultant smaller forward
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looking common costs that cannot be attributed will be allocated among the

cost elements.

IN WHAT SPECIFIC AREAS DOES THE FCC METHODOLOGY DIFFER
FROM THAT USED IN THE BELLSOUTH FILED COST STUDIES?

The FCC Order contained several requirements that will have a bearing on the
previously filed cost studies. Some of the FCC specifications currently being
analyzed include:

- Cost of Capital

- Depreciation

- Geographic Loop Deaveraging

- Direct Attribution of Forward Looking Joint and Common Costs

- Allocation of Forward Looking Joint and Common Costs

WHAT DOES THE FCC ORDER STATE REGARDING COST OF
CAPITAL?

The FCC Order states that TELRIC should include a cost of money element
that results in “normal” profit. The FCC proposes the authorized FCC rate of
return, 11.25% or a state authorized rate of return, as a reasonable starting
point for cost of money in TELRIC calculations. The FCC Order also states
that a TELRIC “will include a ... cost of capital that appropriately reflects the
risks incurred by an investor” (paragraph 703) and that the “LECs bear the

burden of demonstrating with specificity that the business risks that they face
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in providing unbundled network elements and interconnection services would
justify a different risk-adjusted cost of capital” (paragraph 702). BellSouth’s
studies use a long run forward-looking cost of money, 13.2%, which may be

low considering the risk inherent in BellSouth’s future.

THE FCC ORDER STATES THAT TELRIC “WILL INCLUDE A
DEPRECIATION RATE THAT REFLECTS THE TRUE CHANGES IN
ECONOMIC VALUE OF AN ASSET...” (PARAGRAPH 703). IS THIS
CONSISTENT WITH THE STUDIES FILED BY BELLSOUTH?

BellSouth’s cost studies reflect the projected economic lives for new
placements of facilities. These are the same economic lives as used in
financial reporting for major plant accounts, As with cost of capital, the
forward looking depreciation used in BellSouth’s filed studies may warrant
risk adjustment reflective of our new environment. As with cost of capital, the

LECs must justify a risk-adjusted depreciation rate.

WHAT DOES THE FCC ORDER SPECIFY WITH REGARD TO
GEOGRAPHIC LOOP DEAVERAGING?

The FCC specifies geographic loop deaveraging into at least three geographic
zones. BellSouth’s unbundled loop cost studies were performed on a statewide
average basis. BellSouth is looking at several alternatives that will enable the

development of a reasonable approach to geographic loop deaveraging.



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

2185

WHAT COSTS OVER AND ABOVE THOSE INCLUDED IN
BELLSOUTH’S STUDIES MUST BE STUDIED TO ADDRESS BOTH THE
ATTRIBUTION AND ALLOCATION OF FORWARD LOOKING JOINT
AND COMMON COSTS IN A TELRIC METHODOLOGY?

Once a determination can be made of the definition of forward looking joint

and common costs, at a minimum the following areas of cost must be studied:

- Common overheads associated with maintenance and labor
- Various categories of support expenses and assets

- Corporate overhead expenses

WHAT OTHER AREAS OF THE FCC’S ORDER MUST BE ADDRESSED
TO DETERMINE WHETHER BELLSOUTH’S UNBUNDLED ELEMENT
AND INTERCONNECTION COST STUDIES ARE IN COMPLIANCE?

FCC definitions of services and network elements must be fully evaluated to
determine consistency. At a minimum, it is clear that the FCC’s inclusion of
vertical features with local switching is different from the service definition
employed by BellSouth and has not been studied. Criteria and rate structure

for geographic loop deaveraging must be determined.

IF BELLSOUTH’S STUDIES ARE REVISED TO COMPLY WITH THE
FCC GUIDELINES, WHAT IS THE ANTICIPATED IMPACT ON THE
COST LEVELS?



g A~ W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

2186

Because the areas of difference vary in direction, e.g. change in cost of money
would move cost levels downward but attribution and allocation of joint and
common costs would move them upward, it is impossible to predict the overall
result on the cost levels. However, it is anticipated that, overall, costs will

increase.

WHEN COULD REVISIONS TO COMPLY WITH FCC GUIDELINES TO
THE STUDIES FILED IN THIS DOCKET BE COMPLETED?

A timeline for study revisions cannot be determined at this time. It would
depend on how rapidly resolution can be reached on all outstanding questions,
methodology can be developed, all necessary inputs can be gathered, and

additional data sources can be found.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yes.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. 2187
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF D. DAONNE CALDWELL
BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. 960833-TP

AUGUST 30, 1996

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, BUSINESS ADDRESS, AND POSITION

WITH BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

My name is D. Daonne Caldwell. My business address is 675 W. Peachtree St.,
N.E., Atlanta, Georgia. I am a manager in the Finance Department of BellSouth

Telecommunications, Inc. (“BellSouth”).

ARE YOU THE SAME D. DAONNE CALDWELL WHO FILED DIRECT

AND SUPPLEMENTAL DIRECT TESTIMONY IN THIS DOCKET?

Yes. I filed direct testimony on behalf of BellSouth on August 12, 1996, and I

filed supplemental direct testimony on August 23, 1996.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?
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The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to address the positions regarding
BellSouth’s cost studies taken by AT&T witness Wayne Ellison in direct

testimony in this proceeding.

THROUGHOUT HIS TESTIMONY, MR. ELLISON ALLEGES THAT
BELLSOUTH HAS NOT ADEQUATELY RESPONDED TO AT&T’S

REQUEST FOR COST INFORMATION. IS THIS TRUE?

No. BellSouth has provided AT&T with over 250 cost studies in connection with
the negotiations concerning local interconnection and unbundling. In addition to
the cost studies themselves, AT&T has requested and received backup
information relative to many of the studies. For example, backup for all the
digital loop carrier and multiplexer files was provided for the loop cost study.
This required several days work by a BellSouth cost analyst to track every input
for AT&T from the number used in the LoopCost Model to the original inputs

from BellSouth Network.

Additionally, BellSouth has participated in several face-to-face meetings and
telephone discussions with AT&T, both to discuss AT&T’s needs relative to cost
studies and to explain the studies. AT&T submitted such a large volume of both
written and verbal requests that BellSouth asked AT&T to prioritize the requests
in order to best meet AT&T’s needs. At the present time, BellSouth continues to

receive and respond to new requests.
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ON PAGE 10 OF HIS TESTIMONY, MR. ELLISON DESCRIBES HOW AT&T

ANALYZED BELLSOUTH’S COST STUDIES. DO YOU AGREE WITH HIS
ANALYSIS?

No. AT&T’s analysis consisted simply of making unfounded and unsupported
assumptions that “significant problems” existed with the studies and using those
unfounded and unsupported assumptions to make adjustments to the final costs. I
would characterize this method of analysis as simply reducing the costs for the
sole purpose of reducing the costs, by using inappropriate and unsupported
adjustments. Mr. Ellison makes several inappropriate assumptions and
adjustments to BellSouth’s cost studies in general. I will discuss them first. I will
also discuss inappropriate assumptions and adjustments Mr. Ellison makes

concerning specific BellSouth cost studies.

GENERAL INAPPROPRIATE ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS

ON PAGE 13, LINE 24 OF HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY, MR. ELLISON
STATES THAT BELLSOUTH’S COST STUDIES “INCLUDE RETURN ON
EQUITY ASSUMPTIONS OF UP TO 17 OR 18 %.” IS HE CORRECT?

No. In fact, BellSouth uses a 13.2% cost of money in its cost studies, which is
based on a return on equity of 16% and a cost of debt of 8.9%. Mr. Ellison
arbitrarily decides that 11.5% is a reasonable equity return; however, he provides
no support for his assumption and, in fact, he cannot support his assumption.

Indeed, prior to the passage of price regulation, in Florida, BellSouth was
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authorized by this Commission, under incentive regulation, to earn a minimum of
12.5% return on equity with no sharing and a maximum of 17.5% with a

provision for sharing a portion of the earnings.

EXPLAIN HOW MR. ELLISON’S DIRECT TESTIMONY REFLECTS
AT&T’S INAPPROPRIATE USE OF BELLSOUTH’S COST STUDIES?

AT&T used the BellSouth cost studies which were service or network element
specific to dissagregate the costs for sub-elements. If AT&T was unable to so
disaggregate, Mr. Ellison complains that the costs could not be disaggregated into
costs for sub-elements. AT&T’s use of the BellSouth cost studies in this manner

was inappropriate in the following respects:

(D On page 16 of his direct testimony, Mr. Ellison complains that BellSouth
did not provide cost information for each sub-loop component. Even if such cost
information could be developed, it would not be relevant because sub-loop
unbundling is not technically feasible. This issue is discussed in Mr. Milner’s

direct testimony.

(2)  On page 18 of his direct testimony, Mr. Ellison complains that “It has been
necessary for AT&T to interpret and restructure BellSouth’s cost estimates to
obtain unbundled costs for the local switch as a stand-alone unbundled element.”
He claims that “This step has been necessary because BellSouth aggregated its
study results to include both local switch costs and costs associated with the

separate transport element.” As discussed in Mr. Scheye’s direct testimony,
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unbundled local switching includes the line termination, end office switching and
local transport. Therefore, the BellSouth cost studies appropriately aggregate the

local switching cost and the transport cost.

3) AT&T uses studies performed by BellSouth earlier than those provided in
this docket and makes comparisons that are not relevant to this proceeding. The
“initial” loop study to which Mr. Ellison refers on page 13 of his direct testimony
is superseded by the unbundled loop studies filed in this docket. The unbundled
loop studies provided in this docket contain the most recent information available
and, therefore, are the only studies that should be considered. In some cases, Mr.
Ellison compares studies that are not even for the same service. For instance, the
local measured usage cost studies associated with the unbundled ports, which
appropriately identify costs for local usage rating and billing, are the only usage
cost studies that are included in this docket. However, on pages 18 & 19 of this
direct testimony, Mr. Ellison compares these local usage cost studies to a cost

study for usage associated with a totally different type of service.

(4)  AT&T inappropriately relies on cost studies performed for other BellSouth
states without support for whether those states incur costs similar to those for

Florida.

INAPPROPRIATE ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS CONCERNING

SPECIFIC COST STUDIES

L. UNBUNDLED LOOPS
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ON PAGES 11 THROUGH 15 OF HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY, MR. ELLISON
MAINTAINS THAT BELLSOUTH’S 2-WIRE ANALOG, 4-WIRE ANALOG,
AND 2-WIRE ISDN DIGITAL UNBUNDLED LOOP STUDIES DO NOT
REFLECT LEAST COST, FORWARD LOOKING TECHNOLOGIES. IS HE
CORRECT?

No. BellSouth’s cost studies for 2-wire analog, 4-wire analog and 2-wire ISDN
unbundled loops include copper and digital loop carrier on fiber as deployment
technologies. Copper and digital loop carrier on fiber represent the most efficient
forward looking technologies for deploying voice grade (2-wire and 4-wire) and
2-wire ISDN unbundled loops now and in the futurje. The network is not designed
for a particular service; it is designed on the most éfﬁcient and economical
technologies for the network as a whole, considerileg all services provided.

Copper cable is the most efficient means of providing service for the whole
network up to an economically determined point. Beyond this point, digital loop
carrier on fiber becomes more economical. BellSouth deploys several types of
digital loop carrier systems based on the most ecodomical system for the density
of the area served. When the density of the area makes it economically feasible,

BellSouth deploys systems that combine the multiplexer and digital loop carrier

equipment in a single unit, further reducing the cost.

ON PAGE 12 OF HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY, MR. ELLISON STATES THAT
BELLSOUTH INCLUDES “INAPPROPRIATE COSTS” IN THE 2-WIRE
ANALOG UNBUNDLED LOOP STUDY BY ASSUMING THAT LOOPS
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PROVIDED OVER DIGITAL LOOP CARRIER WOULD BE CONVERTED
TO ANALOG FORMAT AT THE WIRE CENTER. IS THAT TRUE?

No. All the costs included in the unbundled loop cbst studies are appropriate. In
particular, since the analog (2-wire and 4-wire) looi)s must be provided to the
Alternate Local Exchange Company (ALEC) at the analog voice grade level, a
central office terminal is required to convert the incoming digital DS1s to analog.
The central office terminal is also required to segre%ate the individual voice grade
circuits in the incoming bitstream when the loop isiserved via digital loop carrier.
When the ISDN circuit is served via digital loop cdnier, the circuit remains a
2B+D ISDN (digital format) circuit. However, the central office terminal is
required in order to segregate the individual ISDN circuits in the incoming

bitstream.

ON PAGE 13 OF HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY, MR. ELLISON ASSERTS THAT
BELLSOUTH USES INCORRECT DIGITAL LOpP CARRIER

TECHNOLOGY IN THE 2-WIRE LOOP STUDIES. IS THIS TRUE?

No. First of all, Mr. Ellison provides no support for this assertion, and, in fact, he
cannot. The digital loop carrier technologies that BellSouth uses in the Florida 2-
wire analog loop study filed with my testimony on August 12, 1996 represent the
most forward looking technologies based on the densities of the areas where the
equipment is being placed. BellSouth uses multiplb vendors for digital loop

carrier equipment to avoid becoming dependent on! any particular type of
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equipment or any single vendor. Investments are developed from material prices

based on BellSouth’s negotiated contracts with the$e vendors.

ON PAGE 15 OF THIS DIRECT TESTIMONY, MR. ELLISON STATES
THAT THE “COMMISSION SHOULD ALSO REJECT” BELLSOUTH’S
BASIC RATE INTERFACE ISDN (BRI ISDN) LCOP STUDIES. DO YOU

AGREE?

No. Mr. Ellison’s reasons for asking that these stu%iies be rejected are invalid.

His first assertion is that the BellSouth ISDN loop jstudies do not reflect the most
efficient technologies. He is incorrect. As previoﬁsly discussed in this testimony,
the network is designed to be efficient for all services offered rather than for any
particular service. Therefore, the technologies studied for ISDN service are
appropriate. His second assertion is that the cost s@dies reflect “the same
inefficient analog conversion included in BellSouth’s 2 and 4-wire studies.” First
of all, BellSouth does not convert the ISDN signal§ to an analog signal. The
necessity for the central office terminal used in prq)visioning unbundled ISDN

loops is addressed earlier in this testimony. Mr. Ellison’s third assertion, that an

inappropriate cost of money is used in the study, is also incorrect and has been

previously addressed in this testimony.

OPERATOR SERVICES
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ON PAGE 19 OF HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY, MB. ELLISON STATES THAT
“AT&T ADJUSTED BELLSOUTH’S COSTS DOWNWARD BY A FACTOR
OF 10% TO REFLECT THE POSSIBILITY OF INAPPROPRIATE COST

LOADINGS”. DO YOU AGREE WITH THIS?

No. Mr. Ellison provides no support for the 10% factor used to downward adjust
the costs. He is simply speculating, as evidenced by his term “possibility of
inappropriate cost loadings.” Mr. Ellison cites no facts as to which cost loadings
he finds inappropriate, nor does he address any ina?propriate application of the
loading factors. There is, in fact, no support for ﬁs action other than the fact that
AT&T wants to lower the cost. Operator Services jcost studies were filed with my

testimony on August 12, 1996, and the costs presented in these studies are valid.
PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR TESTIMONY.

BellSouth provided AT&T with more than 250 cost studies from various states for
numerous services and elements from unbundled lbops to Operator Services. In
his direct testimony, Mr. Ellison presented his analysis of the BellSouth cost
studies. Various statements in his direct testimony imply that the BellSouth cost

studies are not accurate. However, he does not support these statements. Rather
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than analyzing the studies, he made what he refers to as “adjustments”. The

overall impact of Mr. Ellison’s flawed analysis is to produce lower costs.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yes.

10
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUN:HCATIONS, INC.
DIRECT TESTIMONY OF D. DAONNE CALDWELL
BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC S*:RVICE COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. 960%46-TP
SEPTEMBER 9, 1996

. PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, ADDRESS AND OCCUPATION.

. My name is D. Daonne Caldwell, My businessf; address is 675 W. Peachtree St.,

NE, Atlanta, Georgia. I am a manager in the Finance Department of BellSouth

Telecommunications, Inc. (hereinafter referred§t0 as “BellSouth” or “the

Company”). My area of responsibility relates tfo economic service costs.

. PLEASE GIVE A BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF;YOUR EDUCATIONAL

BACKGROUND AND WORK EXPERIENC]E.

. I attended the University of Mississippi, graduziiting with a Master of Science

Degree in mathematics. I have attended numerous Bell Communications
Research, Inc. (Bellcore) courses and outside sjbminars relating to service cost

studies and economic principles.

My initial employment was with South Central Bell in 1976 in the Tupelo,
Mississippi, Engineering Department where I was responsible for Outside Plant
Planning. In 1983, I transferred to BellSouth Services, Inc. in Birmingham,

Alabama, and was responsible for the Centralized Results System Database. 1

-1-
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moved to the Pricing and Economics Departm#nt in 1984 where I developed
methodology for service cost studies until 198$ when I accepted a rotational
assignment with Bell Communications Researqj:h, Inc. While at Bellcore, [ was
responsible for development and instruction oﬂ the Service Cost Studies
Curriculum including courses such as “Conce;#ts of Service Cost Studies”,
“Network Service Costs”, “Nonrecurring Costér”, and “Cost Studies for New
Technologies”. In 1990, I returned to BellSouth and was appointed to a position in
the cost organization, which is now a part of thiﬁ Finance Department, with the
responsibility of managing the development oﬂ cost studies for transport facilities,

both loop and interoffice.

. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIIMONY?

. The purpose of my testimony is to describe thei cost methodology used in the Long

Run Incremental Cost (LRIC) and Total Servic‘k: Long Run Incremental Cost

(TSLRIC) studies for the unbundled network elements that BellSouth will provide

to the Alternative Local Exchange Companies {ALECS) in Florida. Specifically, I
will address the cost studies for the following njetwork elements:
e Unbundled Loops (2-Wire Analog, 4-Wire Analog and 2-Wire ISDN
Digital)
e Unbundled Ports and Associated iLocal Usage
¢ Unbundled Loop Channelization Bystems and Central Office
Channel Interfaces (located in the BellSouth central office buildings)

e Special Access Voice Grade Service Interoffice Channel Voice -

Unbundled Exchange Access
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Operator Services

Directory Assistance

Common Channel Signaling

Database Services

The cost studies include all the volume sensiti‘%/e and volume insensitive long run

incremental costs associated with the provisioﬁx of these unbundled elements.

Since the cost issues raised in MCI’s petition fq;r arbitration have been previously
addressed in earlier testimony, [ would like to jbdopt by reference my Direct
Testimony filed August 12, 1996, in Florida Docket No. 960833-TP which
included the cost studies (Exhibits DDC-7 thr&ugh DDC-22) for the afore-

mentioned unbundled network elements.

. DO YOU HAVE ANYTHING TO ADD TO Y‘;OUR TESTIMONY?

. Yes. The cost studies provided by BellSouth e%.re based on a forward looking long

run economic cost methodology. BellSouth’s 1cost studies identify both the Long
Run Incremental Costs and the Total Service IJ.ong Run Incremental Costs as
appropriate. These studies include only the di#ect costs caused by providing the

particular network element being studied.

The purpose of the cost methodology established by the FCC’s First Report and
Order in CC Docket 96-98 (FCC Order) released August 8, 1996, is to set the rates
for interconnection and unbundled network elements. The basis for a Total

Element Long Run Incremental Cost (TELRI¢) study is also a forward looking
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long run economic cost methodology. However, TELRIC methodology
anticipates pricing of elements in a wholesale #ﬁetwork company; hence, many
costs regarded as common or shared and, there;fore, excluded from BellSouth’s
LRIC and TSLRIC methodology would be inciuded as directly attributable in a
TELRIC study. The FCC pricing methodolog}jf also specifies that, over and above
TELRIC, the additional portion of forward looking common costs that cannot be
directly attributed to any particular network element will be allocated among the

cost elements.

BellSouth is currently developing the methodology to support TELRIC studies.
As soon as TELRIC studies are completed, the‘iy will be provided. The initial
TELRIC studies that BellSouth will provide vdiill be representative of a statewide
average. BellSouth is currently looking at sevqj:ral alternatives that will enable the
development of a reasonable approach to geogkaphic deaveraging of the costs.
Once the methodology is determined, geographically deaveraged TELRIC studies

will be produced and provided.

By definition, TELRIC results should be higher than the LRIC/TSLRIC results.
For example: |

- BellSouth’s LRIC/TSLRIC studies do n@t include any shared or common
costs that would be considered directly attributable using the TELRIC
methodology specified in the FCC Order and

~ BellSouth’s LRIC/TSLRIC studies do npt include an allocation of forward
looking common costs that cannot be directly }iattributed to any particular network

element.

2200



©

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

2201

It would be inappropriate to set rates below thqj costs identified by these
LRIC/TSLRIC studies. Until TELRIC studiesfare available, the Commission
should use BellSouth’s LRIC/TSLRIC results as the price floor for establishing

rates for unbundled network elements.
Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

A. Yes.
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
DIRECT TESTIMONY OF D. DAONNE CALDWELL
BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. 9605916-TP
SEPTEMBER 9, 1996

. PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, ADDRESS ‘AND OCCUPATION.

. My name is D. Daonne Caldwell. My businesis address is 675 W. Peachtree St.,

N.E., Atlanta, Georgia. I am a manager in the Finance Department of BellSouth
Telecommunications, Inc. (hereinafter referre(il to as “BellSouth” or “the

Company”). My area of responsibility relates}to economic service costs.

|

. PLEASE GIVE A BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR EDUCATIONAL

BACKGROUND AND WORK EXPER_IEN(?E.

. T attended the University of Mississippi, grad@ting with a Master of Science

Degree in mathematics. I have attended numerous Bell Communications
Research, Inc. (Bellcore) courses and outside seminars relating to service cost

studies and economic principles.

My initial employment was with South Central Bell in 1976 in the Tupelo,
Mississippi, Engineering Department where I was responsible for Outside Plant

Planning. In 1983, I transferred to BellSouth'Services, Inc. in Birmingham,
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Alabama, and was responsible for the Cenﬁali%ed Results System Database. I
moved to the Pricing and Economics Departm%nt in 1984 where I developed
methodology for service cost studies until 198§ when I accepted a rotational
assignment with Bell Communications Resear¢j:h, Inc. While at Bellcore, I was
responsible for development and instruction oﬂ the Service Cost Studies
Curriculum including courses such as “Concepts of Service Cost Studies”,
“Network Service Costs”, “Nonrecurring Costsi”, and “Cost Studies for New
Technologies”. In 1990, I returned to BellSouﬂjh and was appointed to a position in
the cost organization, which is now a part of thf; Finance Department, with the
responsibility of managing the development of }cost studies for transport facilities,

both loop and interoffice.

. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?

. The purpose of my testimony is to describe the ipost methodology used in the Long

Run Incremental Cost (LRIC) and Total Service Long Run Incremental Cost
(TSLRIC) studies for the following unbundled ljrletwork elements that BellSouth
will provide to the Alternative Local Exchange pompmies (ALECs) in Florida:
¢ Unbundled Loops (2-Wire Analog, 4-Wire Analog and 2-Wire ISDN
Digital)
e Unbundled Loop Channelization Sjystems and Central Office Channel
Interfaces (located in the BellSouth central office buildings)
The cost studies include all the volume sensitive and volume insensitive long run

incremental costs associated with the provisioning of these unbundled elements.
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The cost studies, have been previously ﬁ.lrnish%ad to ACSI in response to ACSI’s
First Request for Documents Items 3a-c and 5. This document request was filed
with the Florida Public Service Commission ( :‘FPSC” or “Commission”) and

served on ACSI on September 3, 1996. The cost studies were filed with the FPSC

as Exhibits (DDC-7 and DDC-8) to my Direct Testimony filed on August 12,
1996. ‘

. ARE YOU PROVIDING COST SUPPORT FOR THE LOOP CROSS-

CONNECT, THE 2-WIRE ASYMMETRICAL DIGITAL SUBSCRIBER LINE
(ADSL), THE 2-WIRE HIGH-BIT-RATE DICiiITAL SUBSCRIBER LINE
(HDSL) AND THE 4-WIRE HDSL LOOPS?

. Not at this time. The LRIC/TSLRIC cost studyj( for the loop cross-connect is

nearing completion and will be filed at a later date. The technical specifications
for the ADSL and HDSL loops are not finalized. When those specifications are

determined, cost studies will be developed and provided.

. WHAT COST METHODOLOGY IS USED IN THE COST STUDIES FOR

UNBUNDLED ELEMENTS?

. Incremental costing techniques are used to identify the incremental costs

associated with providing these elements. Incremental costs are based on cost
causation and include all of the costs directly caused by expanding production, or
alternatively, costs that would be saved if the production levels were reduced. The

production unit could be an entire service or a unit of a service. Costs may be

-3-
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volume sensitive and/or volume insensitive. Long run incremental cost studies
assume that production capacity is adjusted to jmeet demand; hence, only forward

looking costs affected by the business decision being studied are included.

. DO THE LRIC AND TSLRIC STUDIES FOR THE UNBUNDLED ELEMENTS

INCLUDE SHARED OR COMMON COSTS?

A. No. The LRIC and TSLRIC studies do not inchude shared or common costs

because, by definition, shared and common co#ts are not causally related to
specific elements. The LRIC studies for the unbundled elements include only the
volume sensitive long run incremental costs as{sociated with providing these
elements. The TSLRIC studies include volum{d; insensitive long run incremental

costs in addition to the LRIC.,

Q. HOW DO THE COST STUDIES FILED WITH YOUR TESTIMONY RELATE

TO THE FCC’S FIRST REPORT AND ORDE}ZR IN CC DOCKET 96-98 (FCC
ORDER) RELEASED AUGUST 8, 1996? ‘

A. BellSouth uses a forward looking long run ecof;lomic cost methodology.

BellSouth’s cost studies identify both the Long Run Incremental Costs and the
Total Service Long Run Incremental Costs as appropriate. These studies include
only the direct costs caused by providing the particular network element being

studied.
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The purpose of the cost methodology establishé;d by the FCC Order, Total Element
Long Run Incremental Cost (TELRIC), is to seﬁ the rates for interconnection and
unbundled network elements. The basis for a ’IiTELRIC study is also a forward
looking long run economic cost methodology. However, TELRIC methodology
anticipates pricing of elements in a wholesale nbtwork company; hence, many
costs regarded as common or shared and, thereffore, excluded from BellSouth’s
LRIC and TSLRIC methodology would be inclpded as directly attributable in a
TELRIC study. The FCC pricing methodology% also specifies that, over and above
TELRIC, the additional portion of forward loo]ﬁ;ing common costs that cannot be
directly attributed to any particular network element will be allocated among the

cost elements.

. IS BELLSOUTH DEVELOPING ANY TELRIC STUDIES FOR UNBUNDLED

NETWORK ELEMENTS?

. Yes. BellSouth is currently developing the methodology to support TELRIC

studies. As soon as TELRIC studies are comple:;ted, they will be provided.

. WHEN TELRIC STUDIES ARE PROVIDED, WILL THEY PRODUCE

GEOGRAPHICALLY DEAVERAGED COSTS?

. The initial TELRIC studies that BellSouth will provide will be representative of a

statewide average. BellSouth is currently looking at several alternatives that will

enable the development of a reasonable approach to geographic deaveraging of the
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costs. Once the methodology is determined, gej;ographically deaveraged TELRIC

studies will be produced and provided.

. DO YOU EXPECT TELRIC RESULTS TO PRODUCE HIGHER OR LOWER

COSTS THAN THE LRIC/TSLRIC RESULTS FILED WITH YOUR
TESTIMONY?

. By definition, TELRIC results should be higher than the LRIC/TSLRIC results.

For example:

- BellSouth’s LRIC/TSLRIC studies do not include any shared or common costs
that would be considered directly attributable u;sing the TELRIC methodology
specified in the FCC Order and

- BellSouth’s LRIC/TSLRIC studies do not in{:lude an allocation of forward
looking common costs that cannot be directly ajttributed to any particular network

element.

. IN THE ABSENCE OF TELRIC STUDIES, WHAT CONCLUSIONS CAN BE

DRAWN BASED UPON THE LRIC/TSLRICISTUDIES FILED WITH YOUR
TESTIMONY?

. Since, by definition, TELRIC results should be higher than LRIC/TSLRIC results,

it would be inappropriate to set rates below the costs identified by these
LRIC/TSLRIC studies. Until TELRIC studies are available, the Commission
should use BellSouth’s LRIC/TSLRIC results as the price floor for establishing

rates for unbundled network elements.

2207
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Q. WHAT NETWORK COMPONENTS ARE INCLUDED IN EACH OF THE

THREE TYPES OF UNBUNDLED LOOPS (2-WIRE ANALOG VOICE
GRADE, 4-WIRE ANALOG VOICE GRADE AND 2-WIRE ISDN DIGITAL
GRADE)?

. The unbundled loop is the facility used to connect an ALEC’s customer premises

with the BellSouth central office. The voice grade and ISDN unbundled loops
begin at a connection on the Main Distributing F rame in the BellSouth central
office. Atthe ALEC’s customer premises, the lbop includes the cabling up to and
including the network interface. All outside pla?pt components of the network
utilized between the central office and the ALEC’S customer premises are
included. The network components include copjper cables, poles, conduit, fiber
optic cables, and multiplexing equipment. Exhi;bit DDC-1 attached to my

testimony depicts the basic architecture for each of the three unbundled loops.

. WHAT TECHNOLOGIES ARE INCLUDED IN THE UNBUNDLED LOOP

COST STUDIES?

. The technologies differ depending on the type of loop being provisioned. The

voice grade and ISDN unbundled loop studies apalyze two technologies: copper
and digital loop carrier on fiber. Copper and digital loop carrier on fiber represent
forward looking technologies and the most efficient method of deploying voice
grade (2-wire and 4-wire) and 2-wire ISDN unbundled loops now and in the

future.
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A.

LOOPS?

The generic steps involved in developing recuriring costs for unbundled loops are
listed below. Each of the three unbundled looﬂs is studied separately and the
unique characteristics of each, such as transmisbion level and loop length, are
taken into consideration. Exhibit DDC-2 attached to my testimony provides a
flowchart depicting the specific steps for develqj>ping the recurring costs for the

unbundled 2-wire analog voice grade loop.

Step 1: Determine the network designs (architectures) which will be used to
deploy the loop. (Loop sample data is gathered for the voice grade and ISDN
loops). |

Step 2: Determine material prices and/or im;vestments for the items of plant
used in each design and/or each loop samplt%. Material prices are obtained
from BellSouth contracts with various Vend(iprs.

Step 3: Apply in-plant factors and telephone plant indices as appropriate to
determine base year investments. In-plant f%lctors are applied to material prices
in order to convert the material price to an installed investment which includes
the cost of material, engineering labor and installation labor. Telephone plant
indices estimate the changes in material pricE and/or installed investment over
time.

Step 4: Adjust the investments for utilization to account for spare capacity.

Spare capacity is required for maintenance and growth.

-8
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Step 5: Apply investment inflation factors to the investments to convert the
utilized base year investments to investmeq?ts representative of a three year
planning period.

Step 6: Apply loading factors to the investftnents to determine investments for
miscellaneous common equipment and poner, land, buildings, poles and
conduit as appropriate. |

Step 7: Weight the investments to determine an average investment for a
typical loop and add the results to determin% an investment by plant account
for the service. The investment for each looi) in the loop sample is calculated
and then an average loop investment is detehined for the voice grade and
ISDN unbundled loops.

Step 8: Convert the investments by plant aqicount to annual costs by applying
account specific annual cost factors to the viarious investments. Add the annual
costs for the various accounts and then divi&e by 12 to determine a total

monthly cost for the service.

Q. WHAT IS INCLUDED IN THE NONRECURRING COSTS FOR EACH TYPE
OF UNBUNDLED LOOP? ‘

. Nonrecurring costs for the unbundled loops are jthe one time costs associated with
provisioning, installing, and disconnecting the unbundled loops. These costs
include four major categories of activity: service order processing, engineering,
connect and test, and technician travel time. Examples of the work activities in

each of these categories are as follows:

e Service order processing -

-0-
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Prepare and issue service orﬂer
¢ Engineering - |

Assign cable and pair; Design circuit; Order plug-in
e Connect and Test -

Install circuit; Test circuit
e Technician Travel Time -

Travel to the ALEC’s customer premises

Q. WHAT IS THE NONRECURRING COST STQJDY PROCESS FOR ALL
THREE TYPES OF UNBUNDLED LOOPS?

A. The generic process for developing the nomecuhing costs for unbundled loops is
as follows: |
Step 1: Determine the cost elements to be dieveloped.
Step 2: Define the work functions.
Step 3: Establish work flows.
Step 4: Determine work times for each work function.
Step 5: Develop directly assigned labor costs for each work function (labor
rate X work time). ‘
Step 6: Accumulate work function costs to ﬂetermine the total nonrecurring
costs for each cost element. |
Exhibit DDC-3 attached to my testimony provides a flowchart depicting the

nonrecurring cost development.

-10- |
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1 Q. WHAT NETWORK COMPONENTS ARE INtLUDED IN THE UNBUNDLED
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LOOP CHANNELIZATION SYSTEM AND THE CENTRAL OFFICE
CHANNEL INTERFACE?

. The unbundled loop channelization system and central office channel interface is

an arrangement offered to the ALEC for the pu@ose of channelizing multiple
digital loop carrier 1.544 mbps channels on a non-concentrated or concentrated
basis up to a maximum of 96 channels per systégn. These channels are available
for connection to unbundled voice grade loops. iThe system includes the DSX-1
cross connect panel terminations for the DS1s and the digital loop carrier system
hardwired equipment and common plug-ins. Tﬁe central office channel interface
includes the working voice grade plug-in. Exhii)it DDC-4 attached to my

testimony depicts the items of plant included in ithese elements.

Q. WHAT IS THE RECURRING COST STUDY 1PROCESS FOR THE

UNBUNDLED LOOP CHANNELIZATION SYSTEM AND CENTRAL OFFICE
CHANNEL INTERFACE? |

A. The recurring cost study process for the unbundied loop channelization system and

central office channel interface includes the sarde generic cost study steps as those
|

listed for the unbundled loops. Of course, the n{¢twork design determined in Step 1

is for the unbundled loop channelization systemiand central office channel

interface.

-11-
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Q. WHAT IS INCLUDED IN THE NONRECURRING COSTS FOR THE
UNBUNDLED LOOP CHANNELIZATION SYSTEM AND CENTRAL OFFICE
CHANNEL INTERFACE? |

A. The nonrecurring costs for the unbundled loop djphannelization system and central
office channel interface include three major cat#gories of cost: (1) service order
processing, (2) engineering, and (3) connect and test. The activities associated
with these costs are similar to the activities listed for the unbundled loops. These
unbundled elements are located in the BellSoutfP central office building; therefore,

technician travel time is not required.

Q. WHAT IS THE NONRECURRING COST STI.bDY PROCESS FOR THE
i
UNBUNDLED LOOP CHANNELIZATION ST{STEM AND THE CENTRAL
OFFICE CHANNEL INTERFACE? |

A. The nonrecurring cost study process for the uanndled loop channelization system
and central office channel interface is identical q!o the nonrecurring cost study

process for the unbundled loops.
Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR TESTIMONYj’.

A. The Long Run Incremental Cost and Total Sewice Long Run Incremental Cost
studies filed with my testimony in this proceeding determine the volume sensitive
and volume insensitive costs that are incurred specific to Florida for providing

unbundled loops, unbundled loop channelization systems and central office
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channel interfaces. The cost studies include onﬂy the costs directly incurred in
provisioning these elements and do not include }any allocation of shared and
common costs. Until TELRIC studies are avail'fible, the Commission should use

BellSouth’s LRIC/TSLRIC results as the price floor for establishing rates for

unbundled network elements.
Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMON‘Y‘?

A. Yes.

A3
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BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF D. D

AONNE CALDWELL

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR REBUT

DOCKET NO. 960916-TP

SEPTEMBER 16, 1996

. PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, BUSINESS ADDRESS, AND POSITION

WITH BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

N.E,, Atlanta, Georgia. I am a manager in the F

Telecommunications, Inc. (“BellSouth™). \

i

TESTIMONY IN THIS PROCEEDING?

. My name is D. Daonne Caldwell. My business address is 675 W. Peachtree St.,

inance Department of BellSouth

. ARE YOU THE SAME D. DAONNE CALDWLL WHO PREVIOUSLY FILED

. Yes. Ifiled direct testimony on behalf of BellSouth on September 9, 1996.

TAL TESTIMONY?

. The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to addréss the positions regarding charges

for unbundled network elements and how they réﬂect BellSouth’s costs taken by

ACSI witnesses C. William Stipe, III, Dr. Marvin H. Kahn, and Mr. Richard

Robertson in direct testimony in this proceeding.
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Q. ON PAGE 30 OF HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY,

A. No. As Mr. Scheye points out in his direct testi

DR. KAHN ASSERTS THAT

THE NONRECURRING CHARGES BELLSOUTH CHARGES AN ALEC FOR

ESTABLISHING SERVICE (UNBUNDLED L

OOPS) SHOULD BE THE SAME

AS BELLSOUTH’S NONRECURRING CHARGES APPLICABLE TO AN END

USER FOR ESTABLISHING SERVICE. DO YOU AGREE?

mony in this proceeding,

BellSouth’s proposed nonrecurring charges for unbundled loops are only slightly

above the nonrecurring costs. The nonrecurring

elements were filed with my direct testimony in|

costs for each of the unbundled

this proceeding. The cost study

documentation includes a list of work centers involved in provisioning the

unbundled loops, as well as the work time requi
each center. These nonrecurring costs are specil
{unbundled loop) for an ALEC’s customer. Dr.
on pages 30 and 31 that the LEC should be able

with the activities required to establish service.

red in each center and the cost for

fic to establishing service

Kahn even admits in his testimony

to recover the costs associated

There are several activities required to provisioqi an unbundled loop for a new

customer. Some of the activities significantly irrnpact the cost to BellSouth, and

are included in the filed cost study. Examples o

following:

f these activities include the

¢ The Circuit Design Group designs the unbundled loop and issues a DLR to

the ALEC indicating the basic design information on the DLR and the hand-off

interface.

2216
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e Field work groups (1) ensure all plug-ins are placed into the appropriate slots
and are properly optioned; (2) ensure dial tone is available to the ALEC switch; (3)
travel to the customer’s premises to tag/label the unbundled loop circuit with the
circuit identifier and perform the required frequency tests; and (4) connect the loop

in the central office to the transport to the ALEC’s switch.

. ON PAGE 31 OF HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY, DR. KAHN ASSERTS THAT

THE ONLY ACTIVITY REQUIRED TO SWI#'CH A BELLSOUTH END USER
TO AN ACSI NODE IS CHANGING A CROSiﬁ-CONNECT. MR. STIPE
MAKES THE SAME ASSERTION ON PAGE13 OF HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY.
IS THIS TRUE? |

A. No. Again, there are several activities required 11;0 switch a BellSouth exchange

service customer to ACSI. Examples of these a#tivities that significantly impact

the cost to BellSouth are as follows: }

e The service order processing activity 1ncthes reviewing the request to

determine if Remote Call Forwarding (RCF) is }equired. If RCF is required, then

. the service request is forwarded to the Local Ca#rier Service Center where the RCF

orders are issued.

e In order for the ALEC to use the existing jloop, the existing loop must not be
on integrated digital loop carrier and the loop milst meet the design parameters of
the unbundled loop request. If for any reason tﬂe existing loop cannot be used, the
assignment process becomes manual and another loop is sought that meets the

basic requirements of the service request.

-3-
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e The Circuit Design Group designs the uribmdled loop and issues a Design
Layout Record (DLR) to the ALEC indicating T.he basic design information on the
DLR and the hand-off interface.

e Field work groups verify dial tone is avaijlable to the ALEC switch and
travel to the customer’s premises to tag/label tde unbundled loop circuit with the

new circuit identifier. ]

. ON PAGE 32 OF HIS TESTIMONY, DR. KAHN STATES THAT “ILECS

OFTEN INCLUDE THE COSTS OF SALES AND MARKETING ACTIVITIES
WHICH ARE NOT DIRECTLY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ESTABLISHING
SERVICE” IN THE NONRECURRING COSTS FOR UNBUNDLED

NETWORK ELEMENTS. DOES BELLSOUTTH INCLUDE COSTS OF SALES
AND MARKETING ACTIVITIES WHICH Aﬁ}E NOT DIRECTLY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ESTABLISHING SER\J’ICE IN THE NONRECURRING
COSTS FOR UNBUNDLED NETWORK ELENENTS?

. No. BellSouth does not include the costs of sal#s and marketing activities which

are not directly attributable to establishing servi‘pe in the nonrecurring costs for

unbundled network elements. BellSouth does irﬁclude the service order processing

costs. These costs are a direct result of offeringithe unbundled element and are the
costs of handling the customer’s request and estbblishing the customer’s record.
Costs for marketing value-added services are not included in the nonrecurring

costs for any of the unbundled elements.

2218
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1 Q. IN HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY, MR. STIPE dISCUSSES THE PHYSICAL
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CHARACTERISTICS OF SPECIAL ACCESS SERVICE AND IMPLIES THAT
THE UNBUNDLED LOOP BELLSOUTH IS #’ROVIDING INCLUDES
TRANSMISSION REQUIREMENTS AND, TT—[EREF ORE, COSTS THAT ARE
NOT NECESSARY TO PROVIDE ANALOG !SERVICE. ADDITIONALLY, IN
HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY ON PAGE 17, M¢. ROBERTSON STATES THAT
“BELLSOUTH PROPOSES TO PROVIDE 56 iKB/S DIGITAL SPECIAL

ACCESS AS ITS ‘UNBUNDLED LOOP.”” Iﬂ‘ THIS TRUE?

A. No. The 2-wire analog loop that BellSouth will provide to an ALEC is a 56 kbps

analog loop, and the cost study for this loop includes the most efficient and cost
effective technologies for providing voice grade service. In fact, the technologies
BellSouth studied for the unbundled loops are identical to the technologies
BellSouth studies when performing cost studies for any voice grade exchange
service BellSouth offers to end users. The most cost efficient method of providing
voice grade service is copper when the circuit length from the central office is 12
kilofeet or less. If the circuit exceeds 12 kilofeet in total length, the most efficient
method of providing voice grade service is digital loop carrier on fiber. A voice

grade Plain Old Telephone Service (POTS) plug-in is used in the digital loop

carrier systems, not a digital data plug-in as Mr. Stipe implies. The unbundled 2-
wire and 4-wire analog cost studies filed with @y direct testimony on September 9,

1996, include the cost effective technologies I h?ave just outlined.

Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?
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A. Yes.
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Q (By Mr. Lackey) Do yop have a summary of
your testimony?

A Yes, sir, I do.

Q That you can do better than my questions?
Would you please give it? ‘

A Yes, sir. Good morniné. My name is Daonne
Caldwell, and I work in the costiorganization that
provides cost studies for Bellsouth
Telecommunications, Inc. I'm he#e today to sponsor
the cost studies that BellSouth has performed to
support the rates we propose foriunbundled network
elements that will be offered to%alternative local
exchange companies in the state 4f Florida.

We all know that this is a very significant
occasion and those cost studies &ill play a major role
in the Commission's ultimate decision. It may come as
a surprise to some, but for moreithan a decade
BellSouth has developed costs ba#ed on forward-looking
incremental cost methodology. ‘

While each of our costistudies follows an
established methodology, I am going to address the
local loop cost study, since the‘loop is a very
important network element and one that has generated

much interest. 1In order to develop a meaningful local

loop cost study, it is necessary to model an efficient

FLORIDA PUBLIC SE#VICE COMMISSION
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network.

Opposing parties will have you believe that
it is not necessary to analyze tﬁe existing network as
a starting point; however, they %re wrong. The
customers are where they are andjthe central offices
are where they are. BellSouth's%long run incremental
cost studies overlays forward-loéking technology on
the existing infrastructure, inciuding both the
location of existing central offices, and the network
facilities which will be currently and in the future
serving our customers. |

As I'm sure you know, ﬁellSouth serves more
than 3.8 million residence linesiand over 1.3 million
business lines in Florida. Someiparties have
suggested that we should begin oér loop studies by
identifying every loop we have. %It would be extremely
labor intensive to stress -- excdse me -- to trace out
the physical makeup of each one éf these loops; and,
in fact, that exercise is totallﬁ unnecessary since we
used a statistical sample to proéuce the same end
results. ‘

I should note that I am not a statistician,
but then neither am I a person wno purchases our
copper. My point is that we have specialists who all

work together to produce our cosq studies. Our

FLORIDA PUBLIC SEﬂVICE COMMISSION
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statisticians have carefully exa#ined our sample of
loops to ensure that we have the%proper number to
validate our study.

While loop sample make@ps provide much
useful information regarding the%cost of loops,
BellSouth did not simply determi#e the cost of loops
in the existing network. Ratheré BellSouth's local
loop cost study redesigned each %ample in order to
reflect the forward-looking mostiefficient technology.

Loops less than 12 kilofeet in total length
were assumed to be served over Zé-gauge copper cable,
and loops greater than 12 kilofegt were assumed to be
served via digital loop carrier éver a fiber network.

We used the existing cQstomers' demographics
in Florida to make BellSouth cosﬁ studies
representative of forward-looking incremental costs in
Florida. We have routinely and ﬁormally followed
these procedures in our region. ‘

On August the 8th of 1#96 the FCC released
an order proposing a methodologyifor the pricing of
local interconnection and unbundied elements. The
FCC's pricing methodology builds ‘up on the long run
incremental costs that I have just described. Indeed,
the FCC coined a new phrase, “total element long run

incremental cost, TELRIC. ‘
|
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A TELRIC study produce$ the cost of a
network element rather than a telecommunications
service. I should also note tha# when you add a
service's volume sensitive cost to its nonvolume
sensitive cost, you have what we%normally called a TS,
or total service, long run increﬁental cost study.

When you apply the sam% basic concepts to an
element instead of a service, yoﬁ get close to what
the FCC calls a TELRIC study, bu# you have to make one
adjustment. Specifically, the F#C recognized that
certain costs might not be direc# to a particular
service, but might be a directly%attributable cost of
a network element, such as a loc41 loop; for example,
the salary of a planning engineeﬁ whose job is to
analyze the outside plant networ# and plant cable
relief jobs which would not be iﬁcluded in any
service-specific cost study, because that engineer
designs the networks for all types of services.
Therefore, his or her time would be treated as a
shared cost in our normal servicé-specific incremental
cost studies. |

However, when performing a study that will
produce the cost of any local loop, that planning
engineer becomes a directly attributable cost of the

local network loop element. Theﬁefore, we have added
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these directly attributable costs which we can
identify as being associated witﬂ a specific network
element to our results obtained QSing our basic
incremental cost methodology.

The FCC determined that it would be
appropriate to base prices for uﬁbundled network
elements on TELRIC plus a reason%ble share of
forward-looking joint and commonicosts. BellSouth has
indicated the appropriate commonicost and developed a
cost factor that when applied toia TELRIC will
identify the share of forward—loéking common costs
that should be included. ‘

The result of adding aishare of the common
costs to our TELRIC cost study gﬂves us the economic
cost which the FCC defined in it% order. While these
studies are somewhat complex, I ﬁelieve that you will
be able to see that what we have done is logical,
complete and accurate.

The TELRIC loop study filed in this
proceeding represents the cost tﬂat BellSouth will
incur in the near future when provisioning loops.
Should this Commission find it ié appropriate to price
unbundled network elements based on the FCC TELRIC
pricing methodology, BellSouth's TELRIC loop study

provides the basis for establishing the local loop

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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rate. Until TELRIC studies for ﬁhe remaining elements
are completed and supplied to this Commission,
Bellsouth recommends that the Co#mission recognize the
results of the TSLRIC studies asibeing the foundation
for the TELRIC cost study. Ther%fore, the TSLRIC
results form the price floor forithese network
elements. This concludes my sumqary.

MR. LACKEY: Ms. Caldwell is available.

MR. HATCH: Madam Chairman, before we start,
it might be useful, since I think a lot of the

questions are going to result not only from the TELRIC

study but the underlying TSLRIC ﬁtudy, I believe Staff
has identified that and it's acc%mpanying documents

|
from Ms. Caldwell's deposition a% an exhibit. It
might be useful to have that done now.

MS. CANZANO: So you want the deposition
exhibit and all of the confidentﬂal -- should we just
identify all of our confidential documents right now?

MR. HATCH: I'm assumiqg it's both of her
depositions and the related exhibits.

MS. CANZANO: Staff ha# marked for
identification DDC-22, which consists of
Ms. Caldwell's deposition transcript from September

27th, 1996, as well as Late-filed Exhibits 1 through

6. Ms. Caldwell, do you have anﬁ changes to make to

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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that deposition transcript?
WITNESS CALDWELL: NO,}
MS. CANZANO: At this t
to have that identified as an exh
CHAIRMAN CLARK: We'll
Exhibit 69.
(Exhibit 69 marked for
Also we h

M8. CANZANO:

consists of portions of cost stud

docket, regarding switched access

restructure, and it's my understa

has agreed to stipulate this into

correct?
MR. CARVER: That's fiﬂ
M8. CANZANO: Also, Sta
DDC-24, and that consists of Ms.

transcript from October 7th, and

had asked for late-~filed Depositi

2227

I do not.
ime Sstaff would like
ibit.

identify that as

identification.)
ave DDC-23, which
ies in 950985, that
local transport

nding that BellSouth

the record; is that

e.
ff has identified
Caldwell's deposition
also at that time we

on exhibits. We have

received Late-filed Deposition Ex
this point in time we have not re
Deposition Exhibits 2 and 3, whic
ask as late-filed exhibits. I do
appropriate to do later.
CHAIRMAN CLARK: Let's

minute. We will mark as Exhibit

hibit No. 1, but at
ceived Late-filed
h we would like to

n't know if that's

hang on just a

70, DDC-23, which is
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the cost studies.

(Exhibit 70 marked for identification.)

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Then 45 Exhibit 71 -- let's
just identify the deposition tra#script as that
exhibit, and then when you get a#l the late-filed
deposition exhibits we can do itias one exhibit.

‘

MS. CANZANO: Why don'ﬁ we go ahead and mark
Late-filed Deposition Exhibit 1 in this 71.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Okay.i

MS. CANZANO: Because Qe do have that one,

|
and that is included in this exhibit.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: All r#ght. That will be
marked 71 is the deposition tran%cript from October
7th plus Deposition Exhibit No. %.

MS. CANZANO: And we aiso have included in
that exhibit BellSouth's response to Staff's second
set of production of documents Nos. 6 and 36.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Those will, likewise, be
included in that Composite Exhibit 71.

(Exhibit 71 marked for identification.)

MS. CANZANO: Ms. Caldwell, do you have any
changes to make to the deposition transcript
identified on October 7th?

|

WITNESS CALDWELL: No, I do not.

|
MS. CANZANO: Or BellSouth's responses?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SE%VICE COMMISSION
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WITNESS CALDWELL: No,%I do not.

MS. CANZANO: And are 4hose true and correct
to the best of your belief? ]

WITNESS CALDWELL: YesJ

MS. CANZANO: Thank yoq.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I note that those are all
confidential exhibits; is that cérrect?

MS. CANZANO: That's c#rrect.

MR. HORTON: Madam Chairman, could I just
ask a clarification question?
CHAIRMAN CLARK: Yes, ﬁr. Horton.

MR. HORTON: Exhibit 69 is the deposition
transcript, and as I recall, latg-filed -- yes,

Late-filed Exhibit 1 was the MFS deposition and

exhibits; is that correct?

MS. CANZANO: Yes. |

MR. HORTON: Okay. Th%nk you.

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Mélson.

MR. MELSON: Commissioqers, it might help if
the Staff were to pass out the c#nfidential exhibits.
I believe much of the cross is g?ing to go to those,
and we're going to avoid enunciaﬁing numbers.

MS. CANZANO: Can we take a break for five

minutes, please, because we need}to discuss something

with the parties?

|
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CHAIRMAN CLARK: All r%ght. We will take
until quarter of, or 10 of for y#u to sort that out.
(Brief recess.)
CHAIRMAN CLARK: We'll%reéonvene the
hearing. Mr. Melson. |
CROSS EXAMINAT#ON
BY MR. MELSON:

Q Good afternoon, Ms. Caﬂdwell. I'm Rick
Melson representing MCI. I'm going to be brief,
although it may not seem that way at the outset, so
don't get worried. Your TELRIC cost study was filed

with the Commission and provided to the parties on

Friday of last week; is that cor#ect?

A October the 4th, that is correct.

Q And then we took your ﬁeposition on Monday
the 7th regarding that cost study; is that correct?

A Yes. |

Q And I believe during yéur deposition MCI
asked you for a late-filed exhibit that would explain
the derivation of some directly attributed shared and
common cost factors on a certain}page of that exhibit.
Do you recall that?

A Yes, I do.

Q And you provided that ﬁo us on Tuesday of
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this week; is that correct?

A I believe that was the |correct date.

Q After the deposition on Monday?

A That's right. ‘

Q And that document -- aAd I've put a copy in
front of you. It is not in the 4ommissioners'
packages and I'm not going to reﬁer to it in a way
that you'll need to look at it. iThat consists of a
629-page printout of a single spﬁeadsheet; is that
correct? |

A Yes, it does.

Q And if I wanted to looH at that spreadsheet
all at once -- and you were kind enough to provide us
a copy on diskette -- but if I wanted to look at this
hard copy, I would lay down 17 r&ws of paper in this
direction and 37 rows in the oth%r direction and tape
them together or something. |

A Yes, it is a very long |spreadsheet.

Q And there are a number of places in the
spreadsheet where the printout h%s got a series of
stars; and can you tell me what ﬁhat means?

A Was it in terms of -- you mean stars, or
were they pound signs?

Q Little asterisks. Looﬁ on Page 433 for an

example. The last entry in the iast column on the
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page called "Loadings, Total All Accounts for Retail
Account 6623" has got some stars%in it. What does

that mean?

A In Lotus, the program 4.0, when the size of
the number, meaning the digits tﬁat is in the sale is
too large to print, it prints asQerisks. However, the
calculation itself is still maintained in the program.

Q So if I wanted to see Qhat number, I could
go back to the diskette and chanée the column width
and perhaps see it? |

A Yes, you could.

Q In your TELRIC cost st#dy, we were looking
at Page, I believe, 104 -- excusé me -- Page 64 of
that study, column G which was wﬁere the directly

treated shared and common cost f%ctors were shown.
Could you take any one of the fa%tors of your choicé
out of that column G and show me |where thevfactor
appears in this Late-filed Exhibit 1?

A In terms of the informétion that is provided
in this particular docket, the calculations were
actually performed by another in@ividual. I monitored
the methodology and the calculations. Being able to

turn to the exact page, I cannot do it at this time.

Q Is it your belief that that number appears

|
|
somewhere in this 627-page docum#nt?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SE‘VICE COMMISSION
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a The calculation of the%factor should be in
the docket =-- excuse me -- in the document. We were
to supply everything so that it %racked back for you.

Q If I could invite you to turn to Page 612 of
that document, is the individual who worked on those
calculations here today?

a No, he is not.

Q On Page 612, the fourtﬁ entry down -- and
let me confirm with BellSouth, the row headings, the
names of the rows on this page are not proprietary,
are they? Page 612. :

MR. LACKEY: You're loéking at Page 612?

MR. MELSON: Yes. |

MR. LACKEY: And we're%talking about the
label on the row? ‘

MR, MELSON: Yes.

MR. LACKEY: No.

Q (By Mr. Melson) The f#urth entry there
says "Directly Assigned and Dire%tly Attributed Retail
Costs." Can you describe for mefin words what that
means?

A Yes, I will be glad to. In developing these
costs, one of the things we wanted to be sure of is
that we did not include any reta#l cost in the

|
wholesale calculations for the n#twork unbundled
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elements. So this calculation tqat was -- what this
actual definition here represent% is from the data.
We calculated all the directly a%signed costs from
retail and all of the directly aétributable costs to
remove them from the overall calculation.

Q And if I look four lines further down at
Directly Assigned and Attributed3Wholesa1e Common
Costs, does that represent the same category of costs

with respect to wholesale services that the previous

line did with respect to retail qervices?

A Yes, the same type costs.

0 Then explain to me the |[difference between
Line 8 and Line 10, which is Directly Assigned and
Attributed Wholesale Common Costs and Total Directly
Assigned and Directly AttributediWholesale Costs.

A Can I have just a secoﬁd to be sure I'm with
you? ‘

Q Sure.

A All right. 1In looking%in this particular
form, you have a directly assign%d and directly
attributable wholesale common cost and then your total
wholesale common costs. In the éalculation, you would
have -- we actually calculated t#e directly
attributable costs on a per acco#nt basis.

For instance, for eachfplant account that
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was included in the loop -~ 257-# would be an

example -- we calculated the dir%ctly attributable on
that account basis. Then over aﬁd above that, there

were some direct costs to wholes#le that could not be
attributed to any account, so that would account for

the additional costs that you woqld pick up in terms

of the total wholesale common coqts.

It would be both of thqse. It would include
the directly attributable ~-- exc@se me -- you would
have the directly attributable césts, and then you
would have the direct common cos&s. The next step was
to calculate a portion of the coﬂmon cost to be
allocated, so we used both of th&se numbers in our
calculation. |

Q I guess my confusion -4 and let me try to
ask the question this way: Ther% are three line
entries that relate to retail costs. There are four
line entries that relate to whol%sale costs. What

component is included in your whélesale cost

calculation that's not included ﬂn your retail cost

calculation?
A Okay. In calculating the common cost factor
for wholesale -- that was our main interest -- we did

not take the resale all the way ﬁo a factor that would

have allocated common costs to tﬂe resale category.
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So we did not do as much detail qork in terms of the
retail calculation. We just guaﬁanteed that the costs
were removed from the wholesale %alculation.

Q If you turn to the lasd page just a moment,
Page 629 -- I say the last page.i I don't know whether
it is or not -- 629, do you see ﬂhe entry there that
corresponds to directly assigned and attributed
wholesale common costs? I belieﬁe if you lay Page 629
down next to Page 612, that's probably the easiest way
to do it. 1

A Yes.

Q Do you see that number?

A Could you repeat that,iplease?

Q Yes. Directly assigne# and attributed
wholesale common costs. |

a Yes, sir.

Q If I were to ask you t% trace back how that
number is calculated in this spr%adsheet or the
sources of it, could you do that?

A No, sir, I personally #ould not do that now.

Q I've got no further quéstions. Thank you.

MR. LEMMER: Good morning, Commissioners.
Thomas Lemmer for AT&T. |

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Go ahead, Mr. Lemmer.
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CROSS EXAMINAT#ON

BY MR. LEMMER:

Q Good morning, Ms. Caldﬁell.
A Good morning.
Q Just to be clear on yodr responsibility for

the various studies we have lookéd at, would you
describe for me what your respon%ibilities were,
please? |

A Yes, sir, I'll be glad%to. In dealing with
the cost studies, we filed appro#imately 14 cost
studies in this proceeding. 1In qhe loop world, my
organization -- I'm a manager at BellSouth, and I have
individuals who at the time wereireporting to me who
actually calculated the direct -- the costs associated
and investments associated with ﬁhe digital loop
carrier and the multiplexer, whi%h would be your 257-C
accounts. ‘

I also worked with thefindividuals who ran
the final loop numbers developing the forward-looking
overlay network to be sure all tﬂe costs were
forward-looking. In addition to that, I monitored the
study and looked at the final outputs in terms of the
loop. In the interoffice world =- there is one study

associated with interoffice -- my group was totally

responsible for that file. The DS~1 study, my group
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developed all of those costs.
The other services, suqh as operator
services, directory assistance, those type, I have sat

down with each individual who performed those studies.

We've gone through the calculatidns. I followed most

of the calculations all the way from the beginning to
the end, talked about the methodqlogy looking at
consistency. i

Q So are you the individual within BellSouth

who is responsible for ensuring 4ompliance with the
1

FCC TELRIC requirements when youfprepared these

studies? ‘

A No, sir, I'm not the oﬁly individual. 1In
dealing with the assignment of the TELRIC, many
individuals in the cost departmeﬁt looked at the
order, analyzed the way the dataicould be calculated,
and then each individual performed their own activity.
My major role was to look at it ﬁrom an overall cost
methodology standpoint and consider how it would be
applied and presented in these héarings.

Q So are you authorized ﬁo represent to this
Commission that the Exhibit Numbér 68, which is the
TELRIC study, is a study that coﬁplies with the FCC
requirements?

A Yes, sir.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2239

Q And in your opinion, iﬁ does comply with
those requirements; is that corréct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. Let's talk abou# very briefly there
are several important aspects of%developing a TELRIC
type cost. And just so we all u&derstand what we're
talking about, one of the key requirements is that it
be forward-looking; isn't that correct?

A That is correct. ‘

Q And by forward-looking% we're talking about
projecting into the future what costs may be over a
period of time; is that correct?

A Yes. |

Q And that forward looking does not look

backward into embedded costs; is}that correct?

A Yes, sir; no embedded costs are included in
this study.
Q In addition to forward-looking, we're

talking about long run; isn't th%t correct?

A That is correct. ‘

0 And by long run, we're talking about the
period of time in which we look forward into the
future; is that correct?

A No, sir, not exactly. 1In dealing with terms

of long term, we are looking at #ome period into the
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future. I want to specify that ﬂn this study in terms
of long run, what you want to beiassured of is if you
look at a loop from one end to the other -- because
that's the study we're discussind -- that each item of
plant in there exhausts, so that;you would consider,
for instance, the cable would exﬂaust; so we would
include cable. The digital loopicarrier would
exhaust. We would include cost ASsociated with
additional digital loop carrier.i And so from that
standpoint, it is a long run stuéy appropriate for
calculating the TELRIC cost. ‘

Q So then you would agree that the appropriate
definition of long run is the period of time it takes
to exhaust the various items of ﬁaterials and
equipment that you need; is thaticorrect?

A No, sir, I would not agree that there is a
period of time. It is the assumétion that is included
in the study -- there's not a miracle time period.
It's just that in that study youghave assured that all
costs in the long run are avoidaﬁle or variable, which
means that there would be costs 4— you would include
costs for each item of plant.

Q Well, how do you assure that there's going
to be a variableness or that the costs will vary if

you don't have a period of time in mind?
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A In looking at the analjsis, if you have
identified for each item of plan@ in the study, as I
mentioned, an exhaust period, an4 have included the
cost associated with, in this ca%e, looking at an
additional loop, then you have cdvered the time
period. |

Q So would you agree witﬁ me that in defining
long run then, there may be diff%ring periods of time
depending upon what the particul%r item of equipment
or material is that you're dealiﬁg with?

A Yes, sir, but let me clarify. In looking at
the time, you would not, for insﬁance, study one item
of plant and consider it, what's going to happen in a
10-year time period or another iﬁem in 20 years. What
you're doing is 1ooking at each #ndividual item of
plant and assuring that you havegincluded costs for
those items of plant.

Q Now, isn't it a fact that the FCC order
defines long run in terms of exh%ustion of the
particular item that you're dealing with?

A I do not remember the gxact terminology in
your reference there, sir, but I do remember it does
talk about that in the long run all costs are -- and I
believe it used both terms, avoidable and variable.

Q Let's move to the third important aspect or
|
|
|
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definitional component when we're looking at TELRIC
and that is most efficient. Wouﬁd you agree with me
that when you're defining or detérmining what is most
efficient, you're talking about ﬁechnologies that are
capable of use today and into thé futﬁre?

A Yes, sir.

Q And just to boil down the whole TELRIC
process -- and I think you would‘agree with me that

there's a lot of discussion about it in the FCC order.

Would you agree with that?

a Yes, sir.

Q To boil it down, would}you agree that the
whole point of TELRIC is to assign as many costs
directly to the particular elemeﬁt you're dealing with
as you possibly can?

A Yes, sir. The order ddes specify that you
assign as many directs costs as ﬁou can.

Q And the reason for that is to minimize the
amount of costs that you have to lallocate to those
particular elements; isn't that dorrect?

A I can't really answer ﬁhat with a yes or no.
In terms of -- I believe the ordér does discuss the
fact that you would have, in looking at a total
element, a smaller amount of common cost that you

would have to allocate in the end.
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However, I gave an example in my summary
that I believe associated with the loop that says that
there are direct costs when yourécost object is now an
element rather than a service th#t would be directly
assigned. It would no longer be%in a shared or common
calculation.

Q So then you would agre% that the objective
is to minimize the amount of comﬁon costs that have to
be allocated when you're doing afTELRIC process?

A In dealing with the coﬁmon costs, you would
minimize it by applying the diredtly attributable to
the items, not just necessarily éor the purpose of
just totally minimizing that amount.

0 Let's talk about the v#rious studies that
have been submittea and attached to your direct
testimony. The exhibit that hasﬁbeen identified --
your exhibit that was filed with the TELRIC cost that
has been identified as Exhibit 6@ in this proceeding
is a TELRIC compliance study for the loop in your
opinion; is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Now, the other studies that were attached to
your direct testimony are not TELRIC studies; is that
correct?

A No, sir. We had not completed TELRIC
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studies. Those are TSLRIC studiés.

Q And because they are ndt TELRIC studies,
they do not comply with the FCC ﬁule; is that correct?

| A No, sir, they do not. ‘

Q Now, is it also correcﬁ that there are no
studies submitted for local swit?hing?

A The only study submittqd in terms of local
switching in this particular pro#eeding is the local
usage cost study, and local switqhing is included in
that calculation. |

Q But there is no specific study regarding
local switching?

A Not as a stand-alone, ﬁo, sir.

Q And there is no specific study relating to
common transport; is that correct?

A Could you repeat that?%

Q The exhibits attached ﬁo your direct
testimony do not include a studyirelating to common
transport; is that correct?

A Again, the same answer{would apply in that
the cost is included in the local switching. There is
not a stand-alone cost study.

Q And, similarly, there is not a specific cost
study relating to tandem switching; is that correct?

A Correct for the same reason.
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Q And do you or attachments to your testimony
contain a cost study relating to;the cost of
interconnection? |

A No, sir, not in this p#oceeding.

Q And do they contain a éost study relating to
transport and termination? |

A In this particular pro%eeding there is a
dedicated gost study for a 2-wir% interoffice. That
would be the only example. |

Q So that is the only stﬁdy that comes close
to transport termination; is thaﬁ correct?

a Yes, sir.

Q Okay. Let's talk about your studies now.
And the purpose of your studies,?as I understand themn,
is to identify -- or measure I sbould say =-- recurring
and nonrecurring costs; is that #orrect?

A Yes. ‘

Q And that the purpose ok the costs that you

developed for non -- excuse me -~ for recurring
purposes is to identify a recurring cost -- let's
focus on the loop -- a recurring cost for that -- for

an individual loop for a period of time, usually a
month; is that correct?
a Yes, sir. It is a monthly cost, and it is

for a statewide average loop inrthe state of Florida.

|
[
i
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Q So you develop an aver#ge cost?

A It is not an average cdst. It is the cost
of an average or typical loop in%the state of Florida.

Q And by typical 1loop, défine for me what you
mean by typical loop. |

A In this particular study what we have done
is look at a statistically validisample of loops for
the state of Florida. So in cosﬁing out each one of
those loops and then averaging tﬂe final result, it
would be the cost of a typical oﬁ average, statewide
average loop.

Q If you would turn to P#ge 10 of your direct
testimony, and I'll be looking aﬁ Pages 10 and 11 of
your direct testimony for a few ﬁinutes.

A Would this be in AT&T??

Q Yes. I'm sorry. Now,fas I understand those
pages, those pages describe an e#ght—step process that
you go through to reach what I will call a TSLRIC type
cost; is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Is that a fair statemeﬁt?

A That's a fair statement.

Q And then in your TELRIC study there is what
I'll call the step 9 described, which adds in the

components that TELRIC requires be assigned to a
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particular loop; is that correct3

A Yes. The directly attﬁibutable is listed as
step 9 or an additional step.

Q Now, the first step is that you talk about
on Page 10, your direct testimonﬂ relates to network

design. Would you agree with me}that that is the key

point or the essential step you ﬂeed to take to have a

proper study completed?

A Yes, sir. 1In developiqg any type of network
architecture, it's very important that you get the
components, the physical componeﬂts that will need to
be studied.

Q So if you added too maﬁy components, your
costs would be overstated, and if you failed to
identify a sufficient number of qomponents, your costs
would be understated? 1Is that a%fair statement?

a Yes, sir. As I stated, it's important to
use the components necessary forﬁwhatever item you're
studying, and that's why we usedithe sample data.

Q Now, I believe you staﬁed that the
architecture in your study for the loop, the TELRIC
study for the loop, was the resuit of a statistical
sample; is that correct?

a Yes, sir.

Q Let me ask you to turn to documents that
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have been identified as Late-fil#d Caldwell Deposition
Exhibit 1, and it's part of the ﬁxhibit 69 that has
been identified in the study. A#d, Commissioners, I
believe it's part of the packet ﬁhat was just
delivered to you. Do you have that?

A Let me check. I belieﬁe it's maybe in this
set. ‘

M8. CANZANO: You justineed to ignore the
labels of this folder, the small thin folder.

WITNESS CALDWELL: Letime verify that it is
the Exhibit 1 associated with th% Dockets 950984 and
960757.

Q (By Mr. Lemmer) That ﬂs correct.

A Okay I'm with you.

Q I will turn to the firgt page of this
document that has a first paragr#ph that's labeled
No. 1 at the top. ‘

a Yes.

Q The discussion in this%document relating
statistical sampling, does this describe how the
statistical sample was done for the TELRIC study for
the loop?

A It gives the general concepts associated
with the methodology for selecting the -- excuse me --

the actual loops you will sampleq and then provided
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the sample size.

Q But the sample size that's described on this
Page 1, is that the sample that Qas used to develop
the TELRIC study for the loop?

a Yes, sir.

Q So based on that, is it fair to say that you
sampled approximately 350 loops in the state of
Florida? |

A Yes. In the sample thdt was provided is
approximately, as you said, 350 noops, but remember,
this is a statistically valid sample.

Q And there are -- I thiﬁk you said in your
opening statement there were aboqt 4 million loops in .
the state of Florida; is that coﬁrect?

a Yes, sir.

Q And how do you know thﬂs is a statistically
valid sample?

A We have a statistician at BellSouth that has
verified all of this data workinj from the beginning
to the end for validation.

Q And the purpose of thié statistical sample
is to develop what I will call a representative loop;
is that a fair statement?

A That's a fair statement.

Q Would you label it, in a sense, a model, a
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model loop?

A I guess you could use that term.

Q Now if you turn to theﬂnext page that has a
No. 2 at the description at the QOp, and attached to
that do you see these various pa@es that go into
identifying the length of the paﬁticular loops of the
sample. Do you see that? |

a Yes, sir.

Q Do you know whether thé longest loop in this
sample is the longest loop in the state of Florida?

A No, I do not.

Q So then it's possible your model would not
reach to the longest loop in thejstate of Florida;
isn't that correct?

A It is possible that the sample data did not
include that loop. However, theiinformation would
still yield -- from a statisticaLly valid sample would
still use a valid typical loop for Florida.

Q And why is that? Becaqse the sample
constructs an average?

A In dealing with the sample data, again I
want to stress I'm not a statistician, so I don't want
to get too far into that area. However, we've worked
with the statistician as dealing with the sample size

and the individual random loops that were pulled, and
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they -- excuse me -- the statistician verified that it
would be appropriate for the staﬁe of the Florida.

Q So you relied on your étatistician to convey
to you a representation that theirepresentative loop
that they developed through the Qample was
appropriate? |

A Yes, sir. As 1 mentioﬁed again, we do deal
with specialists in this area, aﬁd a detailed analysis
was done by the statistician.

Q If you turn over a fewﬁmore pages to the
page that begins with No. 4, wheﬁe it talks about
provide, is the distribution of ﬂoops.

A Yes, sir.

Q Do you see that page?

A Yes.

Q As I understand this p#ge, it is a summary
of the results of the statisticaﬂ sample and summary
in the form of that it's aggregaﬁing the various loops
that were included in the study Hy type of loop. 1Is
that a fair statement?

A Yes, sir.

Q Now looking at the residential loops, based
on the design numbering that's in the second column, I
assume that there are at least 15 design types of

loops for residences in the state of Florida; is that
;
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correct?

A Yes, sir; but let me c#arify one thing here.
In dealing with the model, and tﬁere is also a page in
the cost study that includes thi% -- the actual
designs that are used, what we a#e looking at is the
forward-looking designs; for insﬁance, whether or not
it's served totally on copper or whether or not it's
going to be fiber to the customeqs' prem or something
of that type. So these design nqmbers that are listed
here are the designs that's used?in the model that
calculates the cost.

Q So these loop designs ﬁhen are the
forward-looking architectures ofiloops?

A Yes, sir.

Q Now, looking at the -- at this document, be
it residence or business sample,ido you see any loop
in there that is an integrated dﬂgital loop carrier?

A No, sir, I do not; and%let me clarify
something if I was confused -- if I might have
confused you. In dealing with tﬁe unbundled loop
area, we are looking at a loop that will be delivered
as a stand-alone component unbundled, so that the ALEC
in this case could connect it directly to their
switch. So from that standpoint, the integrated was

not included in the calculation for the unbundled
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loop. It did not mean that therq was no such thing as
an integrated loop. |

Q Now, are you aware thaﬁ integrated digital
loop carrier type loops constitute 20% currently of
the loops in the state of Florida?

A No, sir. I do not knoﬁ what the number is.

Q Well, let's assume thaﬁ that number is
correct. That would mean that this statistically
valid sample failed to pick up ldops that represent
one in five loops in the state oﬁ Florida; isn't that
correct? ‘

A No, sir. And, again, I believe there's a
point of confusion, and let me cﬁarify it. The sample
data when it was pulled included§all of those loops,
so in the actual sample if it was integrated -- an
existing loop today that was intégrated into the
switch would have been shown as ﬂntegrated.

However, when we were @oing the analysis for
the unbundled network element, wé included -- we
redefined that as a nonintegrateq loop. Again, these
are the designs that is in the unbundled loop study.

Q So the universe from which you pick the
samples excluded any loop that was an integrated
digital loop carrier type loop; isn't that correct?

A No, sir. The sample dqta actually pulled
|
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the integrated loop. However, when we made our cost
study for the unbundled network QIement, we converted
that to the nonintegrated. ‘

Q And when you made that%conversion, that
increased the cost of that loop,?didn't it?

A The nonintegration doeé include a COT, which
adds cost. However, that is howiyou would provide a
voice grade circuit to, say, forjinstance, a
collocated ALEC.

Q Do you know why the dedision was made to not
include integrated digital loop Qarriers in the
sample?

A Yes, sir. The decisio& was made in terms of
the study for the cost by the deﬁinition for the
unbundled network element, the loop, which would allow
it to be handed off to the ALEC at a voice grade
level.

Q And do you know who directed you to make
that -- to use that standard?

A In developing the costicomponents for the
network elements, we met with the engineers
responsible -- working with the network elements and
also, I believe, Mr. Bob Scheye that you met this
morning, that deals with what would be offered in

terms of negotiation.
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1 Q Now, looking at this page that we've been

2| looking at that begins with the ﬁumber 4, it indicates
3| again that there were 350 sampleé taken; is that

4 correct?

5 A That is correct.

6 Q Was there any analysis§done as to how many

7] of the census block groups were qepresented in this

8] sample? |

9 a At the time the data wés taken, I do not

10| believe so.

11 Q So then you don't know}how many census block
12| groups were included in this sample?

13 a No, sir, I do not.

14 Q Now, continuing down the methodology, we've
15|| been discussing the design of thq network, which you
16| agreed with me, I believe, that ﬂhat was the -- that
17| was key to this, the way you dev%lop your costs.

18| Would you still agree with that?

19 a Yes, sir. |

20 Q So if you look at Page 11 of your materials,
21| we have steps 2 and 3 that are fallowed, and your

22| testimony indicates that there are factors that are

23|l applied to the architecture that you develop. Is that
24| a fair statement of what's in 2 and 3?

25 A One moment. (Pause.) Yes, sir. In step 2
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we actually developed the materidl prices from
contracts and then we convert those to installed
investments using in-plant factoﬁs.

Q So in steps 2 and 3, if the architecture
that was determined in step 1 coﬁtains too much
equipment, then the dollar amounﬂs that result out of
2 and 3 wiil be overstated, won't they?

a Yes, sir. However, we used, as I mentioned
earlier, the sample data, and weifeel we have the
correct equipment in there.

Q Now, looking at step 4, step 4 is applied to
the -- we've taken the architecture and we've put some
dollar amounts on the architectune, and then step 4
describes utilization. Would you tell me what
utilization means?

a Step 4 that's listed on Page 11 deals with
the TSLRIC study, and we;re talking about spare
capacity, and this would be, say, for instance,
100-pair cable, if it had a utilization factor of 70,
you would have 30 spare pairs.

The purpose of those spare pairs is to
account for maintenance. For inétance, if a pair goes
bad you can cut it to another one, or also growth, and
that is because it takes time to -- from the beginning

of a cable placement job to the completion to get the
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cable into plant and into servicq. So from that
standpoint you want to be ready QO serve your
customers; so you do have a growﬁh component.

Q Now, this growth compoqent that you
mentioned, explain to me how thaq is factored in.
Let's make the assumption that yodu're putting in new
cable, and let's make further as#umption that this
utilization factor is defined as%50%. Are you with me
so far?

A Yes, sir.

Q What would that 50% thqt -- the 50% that is
excluded -- maybe I ought to chaﬁge my percentages.
Let's say we use a 40% utilizatién factor, so we have
a 60% nonutilized amount. What éomponent of that is
generally related to growth, if ﬁou know?

A In general, the only area that you're going
to have a utilization that small%a percentage is in
terms of -- I believe you said 46%.

Q Correct.

A Is going to be in the loop world in the
distribution area. Aand in the distribution world is
in people's neighborhoods and where they have their
yards and driveways. So it's the additional
facilities that would be prepared -- excuse me -~ that
will allow for the second line tq a home, or in other
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words, to -- so that you would not have to go back to
that home as readily for that sm&ll a utilization
factor. |

However, in the feederiroutes it's much
higher, because you are going togreinforce in a three
to five-year time frame normally; so, therefore, it
would be the time in that partic@lar scenario to place
the new cable.

Q Now, the purpose of thé utilization factor
is to spread the entire cost of qhe particular
material we're dealing with to tﬂe users; isn't that
correct?

a In this particular case, on the actual
working loops. |

Q So in my example with &he 40% utilization
factor, the -- an individual who is using that
component will be paying, in a sénse, 2.5 times what
they would be paying if there wa# 100% utilization; is
that correct?

A In your -- yes, sir. In your analysis on
the numbers, that would be correct. But let me point
out in terms of the distribution; since we were
talking about the 40%, one of the high costs of
copper, which is the type distribution we use, is the

placement cost, and it's much cheaper on a per pair
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basis to go in the first time anq place the facility
with enough relief rather than té come back.

Q But let me ask you thi% so I can understand:
The 40% we're talking about in mj example, does that
represent an estimate of utilization of, to use your
example, the distribution cable 4ver a period of time,
or is that the utilization on thq day that it first
becomes active?

A I'm trying to follow y&ur logic there. The
40% represents the projected utiﬂization we feel we
will have over the entire distriﬁution area. It
would ~-- I do not believe I folléw your analysis on
the first day in operation.

Q Well, if the 40% repre%ents the projected
utilization over the life of this particular itenm,
then by using a 40% utilization ﬁactor, BellSouth is
saying, we will not be using 60% lof that element; is
that correct? |

A In dealing with the distribution, it allows
for the fact that you will be abﬂe to provide service
in those particular areas.

Q Let me try it from another direction. I'm a
user today. My subdivision just got built and I'm one
of the first users. And you've used this 40%

utilization factor. I'm going to be paying, as I
i
|
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think we agreed, 2.5 times the amount for this
particular item than I would payjif there were 100%
utilization; isn't that correct?

A The numbers are correc@, yes, sir.

Q And if I understand wh#t you're telling me,
the 40% represents the utilizati#n factor out into the
future, so I, as this first userg will continue to pay
that 2.5% -- excuse me =-- the 2.# times the amount,
and I would continue to do that ﬂnto the future; is
that correct?

A I just want to be very%careful here. I only
deal with costs. I do not deal qith prices and what
people would actually pay. The QOst that is
associated with the individual ldop that connects to
your house includes the cost for%additional
facilities, or unused capacity iﬁ this particular
case, so that it would -- acrossgthe entire
distribution area, you would havq the ability to add
new lines to each individual home.

Q Now, I'm an individualithat moves into an
extension of that subdivision two or three years down
the line. Based on what you just said to me, I assume
there's no cost associated with my service for that
particular item we're dealing with.

A No, sir. There is -- that there is no cost.
i
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Remember we're doing long run in%remental cost, and
it's back to the first definitioﬁ I gave concerning
long run incremental cost. 1In tﬁe long run all costs
are going to be avoided, are varﬂable, so therefore
you include the cost of the distribution in that
calculation. i

Q But I am the new user.j I'm the new person
in this subdivision, and I am noq included in your 40%
fill factor or your utilization ﬂactor, am I?

A In dealing with the particular area --
remember I'm looking at an entir% serving area and,
therefore, each individual, what%we're looking at is
the fill for the distribution aréa, not necessarily
one cable to a home.

o) So then in the whole distribution area, that
40% -- let me see if I can phras% this another way.
The 40% utilization factor, if that remains constant
that says to me, anybody within ﬂhat distribution zone
who was added subsequently to whén that distribution
first came into being has no cost associated with
their service; isn't that correct?

A No, sir. I don't agree with that. 1In terms
of no cost, what you have to remember is we are not
costing a single individual customer or location. We

are looking at the -- first of all, the distribution
!
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area and then all of the feeder, and then building
that up to a statewide average. jThis is a loop that
represents the statewide averagegloop.

Q So we just finished tayking about step 4,
which is development of utilizatﬂon factor, which I
think we agreed -- well, let me qsk it as a question.
The utilization factor is used t% take the cost that
you come up with and to assign iﬁ to the users through
this utilization factor, so you dome up with a dollar
amount per loop based on this utﬂlization factor; is
that a fair statement?

A Yes, sir, I believe itﬂs a fair statement.

Q Then we move into -- aQain looking at your
direct testimony on Page 11, we ﬁove into another
series of steps in which variousﬂfactors are applied
to that amount. We're talking about inflation
factors, loading factors, certaid probability factors;
and these factors, as I understaﬁd it, are applied to
the dollar amount that comes outfof step 4; is that
correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q So that if the dollar amount that came out
of step 4 was a dollar amount that was too high, then
the application of all of these loading factors to

that dollar amount would continuq to increase the
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overstatement of the cost; isn'tfthat correct?

A Yes, sir; if you had ad incorrect number
that was too high, fhe cost would, as you move down
the steps, be higher. However, qhe numbers in our
TELRIC study are not too high at?this point.

Q Now, if you turn over €o Page 11 of your
testimony, we have a step 8 that's described, and it
describes the use of -- I believe it's called annual
cost factors. Would you give us%a brief description
of what those are, please? |

A Yes. Your annual cost# associated with
the -- first of all, the investmént of a particular
item and then the use of that item, they fall into the
categories of the depreciation, &he cost of money, and
then the income tax on the capit41 investment, and
then it includes operating expenses when you use it,
such as maintenance. |

There are some taxes, éuch as ad valoremn,
your property tax, and then gross receipts tax.

Q Last night I was 1ookiﬂg at some of the work
papers that you provided relating to step 8 that takes
the dollar amount that comes out through steps 1
through 7 and converts that into these annual cost
factors, the depreciation and the other factors; and

after looking at that, it was my characterization --

|
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and I'm wondering if you would agree with me -- that
that is a very complex process.

a No, sir, if you're jusﬁ talking about taking
the investment and applying the annual cost factors.
The calculation is to take the iﬂvestment dollar
amount and multiply by the approdriate, say, for
instance, depreciation factors, ét cetera.

Q So then it's an easy priocess?

A It can be accomplished in a basic
spreadsheet, yes.

Q And how big is that spﬁeadsheet?

A It depends on the number of elements that
you are studying.

Q Okay. So we've proceeded through step 8
now, and we have a dollar amount associated -- again
focusing on the loop, that is a jearly and then
converted to a monthly amount fo# that particular
loop.

The last step we havenﬁt looked at -- and
correct me if I'm wrong -- is whdt I'11l call the
addition of the TELRIC layer of &ost; is that correct?
That's not described in your testimony to this point.

A Yes, sir, I have not described -- these
steps that are listed here -- let me clarify -- were

for the TSLRIC, and I have not described that step.
|
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Q Okay. Now if you would turn to your TELRIC
cost study that's been labeled as Exhibit 68 in this
proceeding, please.

-\ The TELRIC; right.

Q That is correct. Do you have that in front
of you?

A Yes.

0 What I'd ask you to do is turn in several

pages -- and I'm looking at sectﬂon ~-- or Part A. I'm
going then through the pages. Iﬁ says Section 1, and
then I turn to Section 2, and I'm on the second page
of Section 2, and the very first words at the top of
the page are "Planned Account Specific Investment."

Do you have that page?

A Yes, I'm with you.

Q Let me direct your attention down to the
paragraph that's in the middle tﬁat starts next. Do
you see that paragraph? ‘

A Yes, sir.

Q Does that paragraph describe BellSouth's
TELRIC calculation? TELRIC plus calculation, I should
say.

A Yes, sir.

Q And this paragraph, as I understand it,

describes something that you were talking about
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before, and that is the first step is to identify
directly attributable costs for each network element;
is that correct?

A Would you clarify that?

Q My question is, the fiﬁst step you take in
this TELRIC calculation is to idéntify costs that have
not yet been attributed to any p@rticular element but
that, in fact, you can directly Qttribute to an
element. Isn't that the process§you're going through
at the first step here? ‘

A Yes. What we are doinq is we actually
perform that on a per account ba#is.

Q And that analysis divides those costs, I
believe you said earlier, betweeq wholesale, retail
and then certain costs that mighq be joint to both
wholesale and retail; is that coﬁrect?

A Yes, that's correct.

Q And in the process of doing that for
identifying what relates to wholesale, isn't it
correct that you exclude advertiﬁing costs, product
management costs and customer service costs?

A In particular for this calculation we have
excluded the -- advertising, I believe was the first
one you mentioned, and product management. The one

thing -- and I want to be real careful on this -- is

i
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on the customer services, we included the
interconnection customer services because they would
handle the ALECs.

One of the reasons in Qealing with this is
that we developed regional numbers, and we did not
have state-specific data available. I believe
Mr. Reid discusses this in more detail as that. When
we get to the point once he has qﬁmpleted all nine
states, we were going to look back at this component
again to be sure that the differ@nce between wholesale
and retail is appropriately calculated.

Q And that were division%of cost relates to
customer services, just to make Qure I understand what
you just said?

A No. 1In addition, I believe it includes also
considering some product managem%nt and advertising.
I'm not familiar with the percenﬂages of the numbers
that is being discussed.

Q Do you recall testifying before the North
Carolina Public Services Commission?

A Yes, sir.

Q And do you remember telling me during that
testimony that during this calculation of directly
attributable cost, you excluded all advertising, all

product management and all customer services?

i
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A Yes, sir. And let me clarify that in the
Florida study we have, in the unhUndled network
element components, we have also excluded those. I
just wanted to clarify that at some point in the
future we still will be looking at them in more
detail.

Q So your testimony then is that advertising,
product management and customer Qervices costs have
been exclude for purposes of this study?

A Fbr unbundling, yes, sﬂr.

Q The last part of this daragraph describes,
to make sure that I understand iﬂ -- or the last part
of this page describes the calculation in which costs
that have not yet been attributed to a particular
network element, which we'll call common costs, are
allocated among all the network élements. Is that
fair to say?

A It's allocated on a percentage basis
across -- I want to be clear, that I make this
clear -- that we do not take all of the joint and
common costs that are left and allocate them to
wholesale. We're only allocating a portion of them to
wholesale. We're also allocating some to retail, so
that the common costs is not totally carried -- let me

give you an example. Executive or legal, we do not
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take all of the legal departmentiand assign it to
wholesale. There is a split betﬁeen wholesale and
retail.

Q And that split, if I understand it
correctly, is done on a basis of the costs that have
been directly assigned to each nétwork element?

A Yes, sir.

Q So in other words, youéwould look at all the
directly assigned costs to all elements you might be
dealing with, you come up with a sum total of that
amount, and then you would say tﬂis particular network
element -- let's say the loop -- the direct costs
associated with that are 10% of ﬂhe total; and so 10%
of the common costs would go to ﬂhe loop. 1Is that a
fair statement?

A Let me just clarify. I don't believe I can
answer that with a yes or no. Let me just clarify.
We have developed a factor that ﬂs applied to all the
unbundled network elements. We did not provide it on
each individual loop or port, et cetera, that will --
we will be using this factor for all the unbundled
network elements.

Q But the allocation is done based on the
costs that have been directly assigned to the network

element; is that correct?
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A Yes, sir.

Q In your TELRIC study, the cost of money that
was used was 11.25%; is that correct?

A Yes, that's what we used.

Q And in your TSLRIC studies you used a
different cost of money; isn't that correct?

A Yes, sir; in the TSLRIq we were using a
13.2% cost of money. |

Q And can you tell me why you used a different
cost of money? ‘

A In the TSLRIC study weihave been provided
from our treasury, BellSouth treisury, they provide it
to us at 13.2% cost of money repﬁesenting in their
mind the forward-looking cost for our company.

Based upon the order add the emphasis that
the FCC proposed in terms of an 11.25, we chose to do
the TELRIC study using an 11.25%§cost of money.

Q Now, is it your understanding that the FCC
order allows a company to rebut ﬂhe use of the 11.25%7?

A Yes, sir. My understadding of the order is
that you can use the 11.25. However, if you wished,
you could use some other number, and either higher or
lower to, and then justify that particular number.

Q So when you constructed the TELRIC study, is

it fair to say that there was -- that you, or whomever
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a rate higher than the 11.25%?

A At this point in time mé felt the best
position in terms of the order was the 11.25%.

Q Now if you would turn ower to the next page
of this Exhibit 68 that we're looking at in the
discussion regarding nonrecurring costs. Do you see
that?

A Yes.

Q There's a reference injthe middle of the
first paragraph to the identification of work
functions. Is my assumption corﬂect that those work
functions are identified and theﬂ measured through
what are called time and motion Qtudies?

A In some cases a time aqd motion study is
used; in other cases, subject maﬂter experts. Let me
provide an example of a work funqtion. It would be,
for instance, the =-- in the service order processing
area, the amount of time to take%a service order.

Q And have you provided qhese time and motion
studies to the Commission or the%Staff?

A No, we have not. The qnly ones that would
have used time and motion studies, I believe, would
have been in the service order area; and, no, I did

not.
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Q How did the study go about identifying what
particular activities would be cqnsidered for purposes
of developing nonrecurring costs?

A First of all, the cost bnalyst meets with
the individuals responsible for the various -- in this
case we normally say products, bw@ in this case, for
instance, the unbundled loop; and it would be the
individuals that would handle thq service order, do
the testing, the installation, r@presentatives of each
one of those work centers, and discuss what activities
would be involved in the time estimates that we would
need to include in our cost studies.

Q Now, the various activﬂties you looked at
relate to activities to actually installing a loop;
isn't that correct?

A Yes, sir. They includ& activities -- and
let me clarify installation; It includes activities
for taking the service order, and then installation
would be the coﬁnecting and testing at the customer
premises.

All -- what I'm tryingjto clarify here is
all capitalized labor associated with the cable was
included in the recurring.

Q Was there any study done of what activities

might occur when you have an existing loop that's
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transferred to another carrier?

A As far as a study, we have discussed this
with the individuals in the -- thk one representation
of this in the TELRIC cost study ﬁs if it is an
existing customer, the special services installation
and maintenance, the time has beeb adjusted down for
testing and dispatch -- excuse me?-— travel.

Q And is there any documebtation that's been
provided regarding that adjustmenﬁ?

A The numbers were actually provided in the
study. I do not know if we actually provided any more
documentation as to that split.

Q Okay. Let's continue tp move along through
this study here. 2as I understandiétatements
throughout the study, the time p@riod for the study is

a three-year period; is that corrbct?

A Yes, sir, we looked at a three-year time
frame.
Q Let me ask you to turn through a number of

pages in your materials, and whené I want you to be is
in Section 4, Tab C of this study. The heading at the
top of the page would say "Conversion of Cable
Sheath."

A Yes, sir.
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(Transcript continues in sequence in

Volume 16.)
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